
 
 

February 03, 2020                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               8:07 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General Services 
Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 

 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at City Hall, in the City Clerk’s office, during 
normal business hours.  In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the City’s 
website at www.cityofclovis.com. 

 
February 3, 2020 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
The City Council welcomes participation at Council Meetings.  Members of the public may 
address the Council on any item of interest to the public that is scheduled on the Agenda.  In 
order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes 
per topic. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Ashbeck 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Public Comments - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City Council 
on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order for 
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 
 
 
 
 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


February 03, 2020                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               8:07 PM 

CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 
ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 
 

1. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the January 21, 2020 Council Meeting. 
2. Administration - Adopt – Ord. 20-01, Amending Sections 6.5.102, 6.5.105, 6.5.106, 

and 6.5.107 of chapter 6.5 of Title 6 of the Clovis Municipal Code pertaining to 
residential water service. (Vote: 5-0). 

3. Fire – Approval - A Request to Authorize the City Manager to enter into a follow-on 
Transition Agreement with the Fresno County Fire Protection District for the orderly 
transition of services within the Sphere of Influence of Clovis as Annexation of Territory 
occurs 

4. General Services - Approval – Res. 20-___, Amending the City’s FY 19-20 
Classification and Compensation Plans to Adopt a Property and Evidence Supervisor 
Classification and Salary Range; and Approval - Res. 20-___, Authorizing 
Amendments to the Senior Property and Evidence Technician Classification; and 
Approval - Res. 20-___, Amending the City’s FY 19-20 Position Allocation Plan. 

5. General Services – Approval - Res. 20-___, Authorizing Amendments to the 
Construction Manager Classification. 

6. General Services – Approval - Res. 20-___, Authorizing Amendments to the Director 
of Planning and Development Services Classification. 

7. Planning and Development Services – Approval – Res. 20-___, Amending the Fresno 
Metropolitan Flood Control District (FMFCD) Schedule of Drainage Costs and Fees for 
2020-2021. 

8. Planning and Development Services – Approval – Res. 20-___, Authorize the City 
Engineer to enter into an agreement with Yamabe and Horn for professional services.  
Amend the 2019-2020 Community Investment Program Budget for the Sewer 
Developer Account. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS- Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 
 

9. Receive and File – The City of Clovis Old Town Parking Study (2019). 
 

Staff: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
Recommendation: Receive and File  

 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

COUNCIL ITEMS 
 

10. Consider Approval – Change of Council Meeting Schedule. 
 

Staff: Luke Serpa 
Recommendation: Approve 

2



February 03, 2020                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               8:07 PM 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 
 
Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
 
Feb. 10, 2020 (Mon.) To Be Cancelled 
Feb. 18, 2020 (Tue.) 
Mar. 2, 2020 (Mon.) 
Mar. 9, 2020 (Mon.) 
Mar. 16, 2020 (Mon.) 
 
  

3



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
January 21, 2020       6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Bessinger 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Whalen 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Flores, Mouanoutoua, Whalen 

Mayor Bessinger 
Absent: None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS - 6:02 P.M. 
 
Sue Schram, representing the Friends of the Library, invited City Council to an event on February 
20, 2020, from 5:00 – 8:00 p.m. at the Clovis Regional Library. 
 
Molly Abrum, resident, commented on some proposed legislation for the March 3, 2020 election.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:07 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar be approved.  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
1. Administration - Approved - Minutes from the January 13, 2020 Council Meeting. 
2. Finance – Received and Filed – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of September 2019. 
3. Finance – Received and Filed – Investment Report for the Month of September 2019. 
4. Finance – Received and Filed – Status Report of Development Fee Funds for the fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2019. 
5. General Services - Approved – Waive Bidding Requirements and Approve HVAC Building 

Automation System Contract with Trane.  
6. Police – Approved – Authorize the City Manager to enter into a new five (5) year agreement 

with Axon allowing the purchase of 122 Taser-7 Conducted Energy Weapons (all training, 
accessories, support included) totaling $467,117.49. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
7A. 6:09 - APPROVED - INTRODUCTION – ORD. 20-01, AMENDING SECTIONS 6.5.102, 

6.5.105, 6.5.106, AND 6.5.107 OF CHAPTER 6.5 OF TITLE 6 OF THE CLOVIS 
MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO RESIDENTIAL WATER SERVICE, AND 
APPROVED - CITY OF CLOVIS WATER DISCONTINUATION POLICY 

 
Deputy Finance Director Jeff Blanks presented a report on various actions relating to water 
service. Jeff Blanks indicated that staff was recommending Council consider introducing 
Ordinance 20-01, amendments the City of Clovis Municipal Code (CMC), which would 
amend Sections 6.5.102, 6.5.105, 6.5.106, and 6.5.107 of Chapter 6.5 of Title 6 of the 
CMC. And consider approval of the City of Clovis Water Discontinuation Policy, effective 
February 1, 2020. Health and Safety Code sections 116900-116926 (Discontinuation of 

4

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Residential Water Service, collectively) require that “an urban and community water system 
shall have a written policy on discontinuation of residential service for nonpayment”. Staff 
is bringing forward the water discontinuation policy in order to abide by the prescribed 
guidance of the Health and Safety Code. Jeff Blanks noted that this only applies to 
residential water service, and not for any other services provided by the City. Jeff Blanks 
indicated that certain language within the CMC relating to deposits, fees, and 
discontinuation need to be updated to conform to the new policy and to provide clarity in 
certain ambiguous areas. Paul Pierce, county resident, raised questions of staff regarding 
shut offs and who pays. Discussion by the Council. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for the Council 
to approve the introduction of Ordinance 20-01, amending the City of Clovis Municipal 
Code, which would amend Sections 6.5.102, 6.5.105, 6.5.106, and 6.5.107 of Chapter 6.5 
of Title 6 of.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for the Council 
to approve the City of Clovis Water Discontinuation Policy, effective February 1, 2020. 
Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
8. 6:38 - RECEIVED AND FILED - UPDATE REGARDING THE STATUS OF THE 

REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION (RHNA) SITE INVENTORY AND UNIT 
CAPACITY  

 
Senior Planner Rickie Caperton presented an update regarding the status of the Regional 
Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) site inventory and unit capacity.  Rickie Caperton 
presented background and current status on the City’s RHNA site inventory and current 
unit capacity (referred to as “yield”), including the starting unit yield, as well as adjusted 
yield accounting for recently approved projects. There was also a discussion on reasonably 
foreseeable projects that would affect the City’s RHNA yield which are not yet approved, 
but in process of being reviewed. Discussion by the Council. 
 
Paul Pierce, county resident, commented on reducing public facilities and the impact on 
public transit.  
 
Mayor Bessinger noted that this item was a receive and file and no action was taken. 

 
9. 7:11 - ADOPTED – ORD. 20-02, AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS EXTENDING URGENCY ORDINANCE ORD. 19-21, WHICH 
AMENDED PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9 TO THE CLOVIS MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING 
TO HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROJECT STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES, 
DENSITY BONUS, ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS, AND REVIEW PROCEDURES; 
CONSIDER AND APPROVE WRITTEN REPORT DESCRIBING THE MEASURES 
TAKEN TO ADDRESS THE CONDITIONS THAT LED TO ADOPTION OF URGENCY 
ORDINANCE 19-21  

 

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

City Planner Dave Merchen presented a report on a request to adopt Ordinance 20-02, an 
urgency ordinance of the City Council of the City of Clovis extending urgency Ordinance 
19-21, which amended provisions of Title 9 to the Clovis Municipal Code relating to 
Housing Development Project Standards and procedures, density bonus, Accessory 
Dwelling Units, and Review Procedures; and Consider and Approve Written Report 
describing the measures taken to address the conditions that led to adoption of Urgency 
Ordinance 19-21. On December 16, 2019, the City Council adopted Ord. 19-21, as an 
urgency ordinance. The Urgency Ordinance was adopted in order to ensure that the City 
is in compliance with new state housing laws. The Urgency Ordinance amended certain 
provisions of Title 9 of the Clovis Municipal Code affected by the 2019 Housing Laws. 
Among the effects of the 2019 Housing Laws are changes to the procedures and standards 
for housing development projects, density bonus, accessory dwelling units, and other 
housing-related concerns. The Urgency Ordinance was needed to implement new housing 
development procedures and to allow the City to accept housing development applications 
under the new procedures by January 1, 2020. The City is currently in the process of 
preparing permanent amendments to the Development Code. The Urgency Ordinance is 
initially effective for 45 days. Council was advised that the Urgency Ordinance would come 
back for a requested extension at the January 21, 2020, Council meeting. The interim 
regulations will be effective for up to 10 months and 15 days, until December 15, 2020. A 
summary of the Urgency Ordinance was published in the Business Journal on December 
30, 2019. A notice of public hearing was published on January 6, 2020 notifying the public 
that the City proposes to extend the interim ordinance for up to 10 months and 15 days 
until a permanent ordinance amending the Development Code is adopted.  
 
Discussion by the Council. There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the 
public portion.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Flores, for the Council 
to adopt Ordinance 20-02, an urgency ordinance of the City Council of the City of Clovis 
extending urgency Ordinance 19-21, which amended provisions of Title 9 to the Clovis 
Municipal Code relating to Housing Development Project Standards and procedures, 
density bonus, Accessory Dwelling Units, and Review Procedures; and Consider and 
Approve Written Report describing the measures taken to address the conditions that led 
to adoption of Urgency Ordinance 19-21. Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS – 7:16 
 
 City Manager Luke Serpa commended the Clovis Police Department on the Martin Luther 

King Breakfast held on January 18, 2020.  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 7:17 
 

Councilmember Mouanoutoua also commended the Police Department on the job well on 
the Martin Luther King Breakfast and the Police Officers who participated in the parade on 
Monday.  

 
 
 

6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

COUNCIL ITEMS 
 

10. 7:18 - CONSIDERED – LETTER OF SUPPORT TO GOVERNOR NEWSOM FOR THE 
CENTRAL VALLEY COALITION FOR ENERGY AND JOBS. 

 
Mayor Bessinger presented a short report on the State of California putting restrictions on 
fracking in the Bakersfield area. He requested a letter be sent to Governor Newsom 
opposing legislation restricting fracking in the Central Valley.  Discussion by the Council.  
There being no public comment, Mayor Bessinger closed the public portion.  Discussion 
by the Council.  It was the consensus of Council to authorize Mayor Bessinger to support 
an action by the Council of Governments should they take a position opposing Governor 
Newson’s legislation restricting fracking in the Central Valley.   
 

CLOSED SESSION – 7:28 
 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
SEMI-ANNUAL LITIGATION UPDATE 
 
COURT CASES 
 
1. Desiree Martinez, Maria De Jesus Sanchez v. City of Clovis, et al.  
2. City of Clovis v. Uriel and Jose Aguilera 
3.  City of Clovis v. Greg A. Borden, et al. 
4. Desiree Martinez v. Kyle Pennington, City of Clovis, City of Sanger and Others 
5. Brianne Glick v. City of Clovis 
6. Sanford Martin v. City of Clovis, Stacey and Tyler Horne v. City of Clovis 
7. Dimitrios Kastis v. City of Clovis et al.    
8. David and Gretchen Jessen v. County of Fresno, City of Clovis 
9. County of Santa Cruz, et al. v. Bureau of Cannabis Control, et al. 
 
CLAIMS  
 
10. Debra Lindsay v. City of Clovis 
11. Bryon Espinosa v. City of Clovis 
12. Jose Rivas v. City of Clovis 
13. John Bartram v. City of Clovis 
14. Erik Hedstrom v. City of Clovis 
15. April Watt v. City of Clovis 
16. Joan Daggett v. City of Clovis 

 
Mayor Bessinger adjourned the meeting of the Council to February 3, 2020  
 

Meeting adjourned:   7:38 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: Administration - Adopt – Ord. 20-01, Amending Sections 6.5.102, 
6.5.105, 6.5.106, and 6.5.107 of chapter 6.5 of Title 6 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code pertaining to residential water service. (Vote: 5-0). 

This item was approved for introduction on January 21, 2020 with a unanimous vote. 
 
Please direct questions to the City Manager’s office at 559-324-2060. 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Fire Department 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: Fire – Approval - A Request to Authorize the City Manager to enter 
into a follow-on Transition Agreement with the Fresno County Fire 
Protection District for the orderly transition of services within the 
Sphere of Influence of Clovis as Annexation of Territory occurs 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. 2013 Agreement 
2. Proposed 2020 Agreement 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to enter into a follow-on Transition 
Agreement with the Fresno County Fire Protection District (District) for the orderly transition 
of services within the sphere of influence of Clovis as annexation of territory occurs. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Both state law and the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) policies allow for what 
is termed a “Transition Agreement” between the City and the District.  The District provides 
fire protection services to unincorporated areas of Fresno County, while the City provides fire 
protection services within the current City limits.  As properties are annexed into the City from 
the County, certain property tax revenues are transferred from the District to the City.  The 
purpose of the agreement is to allow the District to “transition” from higher revenues to less 
revenues.  This is accomplished by the City paying the District the value of the current 
property taxes for a term of ten years as they transition.  The City is required to have an 
agreement in place because without one, the District could oppose annexations and stop 
future development. Annexing undeveloped or underdeveloped property that is transitioned 
into new residential or commercial properties provides for an increased net assessed value 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



that more than makes up for the revenues paid the District.  Annexing developed rural 
residential does not provide the necessary revenue to cover the cost of the Transition 
Agreement, as well as the cost of providing other City services.  This is due to how the current 
property tax sharing agreement between the City and County is structured. This agreement 
continues with a “carve out” provision for both Quail Lakes and Tarpey Village meaning that 
this agreement is inapplicable to these two substantially inhabited areas.  
 
The existing 2013 agreement was entered into in a very contentious and litigious timeframe.  
The 2013 agreement contains several sections that are complicated and unnecessary.  The 
District and City desire to enter into a new agreement under substantially the same terms, 
removing obsolete language, and providing for a new 10-year term with an option for the 
parties to extend the term for an additional 10 years. This was made possible by the 
cooperative relationship between the City and the fire district.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In December 1990, the Fresno County Fire Protection District (District) formally requested 
that the LAFCO require cities to enter into a Transition Agreement with the District prior to 
the approval of any further annexations. LAFCO agreed to the request.  The City and District 
entered into the first Transition Agreement in 1992, which expired in 2002.  In January 2003, 
a successor agreement was entered into which termed out in 2012.  In January 2013, the 
current agreement was entered into which is due to expire in 2022.   
 
Both state law and LAFCo policies allow for the requirement of transition agreements with 
special districts in the course of annexations. The purpose of the transition agreement is to 
provide for an orderly transition of services from one jurisdiction to another. When an 
annexation occurs detaching properties from the County into the City, revenues from 
property taxes are eventually transferred from the District to the City. The District is relieved 
of primary provider obligation for detached territory upon the effective date of any such 
detachment and the City becomes the primary provider of fire services. The transition 
agreement reduces the impact on the District revenue stream to afford the District the 
opportunity to transition the services they provide. 
 
The proposed agreement includes the following major deal points or changes from the 
existing 2013 agreement: 
 
1. Provides for a new 10-year term (2029) with an option for the parties to extend the term 

for an additional 10 years (2039). 
 

2. City shall continue to pay the District for a period of 10 years from the effective date of 
the specific reorganization the property taxes received by the District on the effective 
date of annexation of property to City. 

 
3. Maintains a “carve out” provision for both Quail Lakes and Tarpey Village meaning that 

this agreement is inapplicable to these two substantially inhabited areas. 
 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



4. Removes obsolete language. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The City will continue to pay the District for property taxes District received as of the effective 
date of annexation for a period of 10 years.  The City charges the development industry a 
fee to offset the cost of the monies paid the District for the Transition Agreement. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
Both state law and the LAFCo policies allow for what is termed a “Transition Agreement” 
between the City and the District.  Without a Transition Agreement in place, annexations 
could be held up for approval by LAFCo and development would be slowed.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
If approved, staff will execute the agreement with both parties. 
 
Prepared by: John Binaski, Fire Chief. 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



PROPERTY TAX ALLOCATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
CLOVIS AND THE FRESNO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

This Property Tax Allocation ("Agreement") is entered into effective January 1, 
2013 ("Effective Date"), between the City of Clovis, a California general law city and 
municipal corporation ("City") and the Fresno County Fire Protection District, a local fire 
protection district organized and existing as a California Special District under provisions 
9fthe Fire Protection District Law of 1987 (Health & Safety Code Section 13800 et seq.,) 
("District"), with respect to the following Recitals, which are incorporated as a 
substantive part of this Agreement: 

RECITALS 

A. District is the primary provider of fire suppression, prevention, rescue, emergency 
medical services and hazardous material emergency response and other services relating 
to the protection oflives and property ("Fire Protection Services") within its territorial 
limits, which includes areas near the incorporated urban centers of the County of Fresno 
including the City. Current District boundaries are reflected in Exhibit 1. District also 
provides Fire Protection Services to certain incorporated cities and substantial portions of 
unincorporated areas within the County. 

B. City is the primary provider of Fire Protection Services within its territorial limits. 

C. City and District currently assist each other through various mutual aid 
agreements. City and District have also previously had automatic aid agreements. 

D. City, District, and other County fire protection districts and city fire departments 
work together to serve the fire and emergency service needs of regional Fresno County. 
Under mutUal aid and various automatic aid agreements, when an initial responding 
agency is on a service call, other available agencies will provide support to the initiating 
agency. Under appropriate circumstances, support to the initiating agency will include 
coverage of the initiating agencies jurisdictional boundaries when other fire units are 
away on call. 

E. District's Fire Station number 85 is the closest station to City's present 
incorporated limits, located within the City at the Southwest comer of Nees and 
Sunnyside A venues. Station 85 serves unincorporated Fresno County areas nearest to the 
northern part of the City, as shown in Exhibit 2. 

F. District's primary source of funding comes from general purpose ad valorem 
property tax revenue from all real property within its territorial limits ("Property Taxes"). 
The revenue within involved tax rate areas is based on the combined "parent zone" and 
applicable "service zone" tax rates to the taxable value of the real property within such 
territory, as reflected in Exhibit 3. 

G. As City expands and property annexes into the City, the property detaches from 
the District, reducing the size of District's territorial limits and lowering District's tax 
base and Property Taxes it receives. District relies upon Property Taxes District wide to 

1 

Attachment 1

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



support its operations, levels of service and to provide regional support, including within 
the City. To address the impact of the resulting loss of property tax revenue on District 
facilities, equipment and personnel and to mitigate impacts upon the District from 
annexations and detachments, Fresno County Local Agency Formation Commission 
("LAFCo") policy requires the City and District attempt to reach an agreement governing 
the transition of fire protection services as property annexes into the City and detaches 
from the District ("Agreement"). 

H. LAFCo cannot require the parties to negotiate for any particular form of an 
Agreement. For the past 20 years District and City have operated under transition 
agreements, the most recent covering the last ten (10) years (the "2003 Transition 
Agreement"), under which City agreed to pay District a lump sum of money upon 
annexation and detachment of property reflecting a percentage of Property Taxes District 
would have received had the property not been annexed for a period of 10 years. 

I. District and City have reached an agreement on the terms of a new Agreement 
under which the District will continue to receive the Property Taxes District would have 
received had the property not been annexed and detached for a period of 10 years. In 
exchange for the continued allocation of Property Taxes, District will: (i) provide levels 
of service that are at least equal to or better than the levels of service currently provided 
by District in areas adjacent to City as of the date of this Agreement, which directly 
benefits City and those areas; (ii) continue to provide regional support, which directly 
benefits the City and future annexation areas and, (iii) formulate and maintain such 
automatic aid agreements as may be agreed to from time to time by the parties. 

J. The intent of this Agreement is to apply to all unincorporated areas that may be 
subject to annexation to the City and detachment from the District 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Effect of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated in, and are a part of 
this Agreement. 

2. Sharing of Property Taxes. Upon the effective date of annexations/reorganizations 
of property ("Affected Territory") into the City, the tax imposed, collected, and allocated 
by Fresno County for the benefit of the District ("Base Year Allocation" or "BY A") shall 
continue to be collected by the County and the County shall allocate the monetary 
amount of the tax in the Affected Territory to the District which shall be increased by not 
more than two percent (2%) per annum in accord with the constitutional rate, if imposed 
by the County. Other than the 2% annual increase, the District will not be eligible to 
receive any increase in the BY A. Said sum retained by Fresno County shall be paid by 
the County to District for a period often (10) years unless this Agreement shall otherwise 
terminate as provided herein. 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the effective date of reorganizations and the 
date to be used for when the tax reallocation to District commences, shall be the date 
upon which the annexation of property is recorded with the County Recorder consistent 
with statute. 

2 13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Exhibit 4 sets forth an example of the calculation. 

District shall be responsible for making arrangements with the County to allocate 
the BY A and any fee charged by the County for collection of or retention and payment of 
the BY A shall be charged to the District. District and City agree to enter into a 
supplemental agreement with the County for this purpose. Should the County not agree 
to allocate the BY A to the District, City and District agree to nonetheless implement its 
timely allocation, such implementation agreement may include City contracting with a 
private entity to manage the allocation, subject to District being responsible for any fees 
associated with the other arrangements agreed to by District. 

2A. Inapplicability of Revenue Sharing to Substantially Inhabited Areas. The 
provisions of Section 2 relating to the BY A shall not apply to an area of the County that 
is annexed into the City and is substantially inhabited. Examples of substantially 
inhabited areas include: 

• Quail Lake Estates, located between Shaw and Ashlan A venues, east of McCall 
Avenue. (Exhibit 5.) 

• Tarpey Village, located in the area generally bounded by Minnewawa, Sunnyside, 
Gettysburg and Shields Avenues. (Exhibit 6.) 

This exception shall only apply to forced annexations as defined herein. This exception 
shall not apply to annexations voluntarily initiated by the City. Forced annexations shall 
mean: 

(a) Annexations mandated by the State of California. 

(b) Annexations requested by the County of Fresno and subsequently 
approved by LAFCo through negotiations with the City over tax sharing 
agreements or project specific development agreements. 

(c) Annexations required by LAFCo. 

( d) Annexations initiated by the voters. 

3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of ten (10) years from the 
Effective Date, except that obligations which continue beyond the term of this Agreement 
shall continue until satisfied. This Agreement shall replace in all respects the 2003 
Transition Agreement between the parties. 

4. City Imposition of Fee and Right to Terminate. The parties acknowledge that the 
City intends to charge a fee in accordance with applicable law at the time of approval of 
an annexation and related discretionary land use approvals, including subdivisions and 
development agreements, which shall include the amount of the BYA plus any additions 
as provided by this Agreement, and any additional costs as deemed appropriate by City. 
City shall provide District with not less than sixty (60) days notice and an opportunity to 

3 14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



comment prior to the approval of any fee. If City is challenged by lawsuit as to the 
legality of such fee and such fee is declared unenforceable following a final judicial 
determination, City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement. City shall have no 
obligation to appeal an adverse trial court ruling. 

Prior to termination, City agrees to enter into mediation with District. The parties 
shall mutually agree upon a mediator and each party shall pay one half ( 1/2) the cost of 
the mediator and bear their own costs for the mediation. The parties shall act in good 
faith and with due diligence to timely complete the mediation. If the mediation is not 
completed within sixty ( 60) days of notice, City may immediately terminate this 
Agreement. 

5. District Levels of Service to Areas Adjacent to City. District agrees to maintain 
current or better levels of service in areas adjacent to City, including future annexation 
areas, which will be also available to City under mutual aid or other agreements. Nothing 
in this section is intended nor shall be construed to limit or restrain the powers of 
District's Board of Directors to make such budgetary or legislative decisions or 
appropriations regarding levels of service, including, for example, decisions to relocate 
Station 85 as set forth herein, which it deems necessary for the overall safety and welfare 
of the District as a whole and to meet regional needs. 

6. Disposition and Relocation of Station 85. City and District agree to work 
collaboratively towards the relocation of Station 85. In that regard, City and District 
agree to jointly prepare a response study to assist the District in identifying a suitable site 
for the future station location if requested by the District. If there are any costs 
associated with the study besides utilizing existing staff and overhead, City and District 
agree to share equally in the costs of that study, except that in no event shall City's share 
of the costs exceed $25,000 .. 

7. Payment of Transition Fee For R0-10-5. 8. With respect to the City parcel 
referred to as R0-10-5, an annexation that occurred before the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, the tax revenue due the District under the 2003 Transition Agreement is 
agreed to be $21,251.00 payable within 60 days of the Agreement Effective Date. 

8. Affect of Annexations. Upon annexation of affected properties to City, those 
properties shall detach from the District, and all Property Taxes shall be allocated 
consistent with Agreement section 2 and existing laws, rules, policies and procedures 
established in the County, subject to any agreement between City and the County. 

9. LAFCo Policy. District and City agree that this Agreement is intended to satisfy 
current LAFCo Policy 102 (041) governing Transition Agreements for fire protection 
districts. 

10. Non Opposition to Annexations. District covenants that during the term of this 
Agreement it will not oppose and will support all annexations into the City that also 
involve detachments from the District . This District covenant does not extend to 
modifications to the City Sphere of Influence or required Municipal Service Reviews 
adopted by the County Local Agency Formation Commission. 

4 15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



11. Accounting. District and City agree that their designated representatives shall 
have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. District and City agree to maintain 
such records for a possible audit for a minimum of four ( 4) years from allocation of the 
BY A to District, and to allow access to such records for an audit during normal business 
hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information 
related to such records. 

12. Termination. 

a. Termination Upon Expiration. This Agreement shall terminate upon 
expiration of its Term. 

b. Termination Due to Invalidity. Should any material portion of this 
Agreement be declared invalid or inoperative by a court of competent jurisdiction this 
entire Agreement as well as any ancillary documents entered into by the parties in order 
to fulfill the intent of this Agreement shall immediately be of no force and effect and this 
Agreement shall terminate in its entirety. 

c. Termination Due to Material Breach; Right to Cure. This Agreement may 
be terminated by either party for a material breach and a failure to cure that breach within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of a notice to cure. 

d. Termination Due to Change in Law. In entering into this Agreement, the 
parties mutually assume the continuation of the existing statutory scheme for the 
allocation and distribution of available real property tax revenue to local government (the 
"AB 8" method of allocation of property taxes and the provisions of the Cortese-Knox
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 governing changes in local 
government reorganization and services) as part of the fundamental reasons for and basic 
tenets for this Agreement. Accordingly, it is mutually understood and agreed that this 
Agreement shall terminate immediately and shall be of no further force and effect should 
substantial substantive changes occur in such statutory scheme or successor statutory 
schemes (whether by legislative or judicial action) which negate or frustrate the 
fundamental reasons or tenets of this Agreement, such termination to be in the entirety. 
Any party contending this section applies shall give written notice of termination 
pursuant to this section, which notice shall include an explanation of the reason(s) for 
such termination. 

e. Termination Due to Change in LAFCo Policies. District acknowledges 
that City is entering into this Agreement principally because of LAFCo's policy. Should 
LAFCo make changes in its policies pertaining to transition agreements between cities 
and fire districts, which eliminates the requirement of a transition agreement as a 
prerequisite for the annexation or detachment of District territory, City shall have a right 
to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to District. A 
recommendation by LAFCo for a transition agreement shall not be interpreted as a 
requirement for a transition agreement. A final judicial determination that LAFCo's 
policy is unlawful, shall be considered a change in LAFCo policy. Notwithstanding the 

5 16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



foregoing, City shall continue to allocate property taxes pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement for all annexations completed prior to termination. 

£ Termination Due to District's Failure to Provide Service. This Agreement 
shall automatically terminate should District cease to provide fire protection services in 
all locations within City's sphere of influence as then established by LAFCo. 

g. Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, City shall 
have no further obligation to have the County or other entity allocate the BY A and City 
may take whatever actions are necessary to cause the County or other entity to stop 
allocating the BY A to District and restore City's normal allocation of property taxes. 
District shall cooperate with City in having the County or other entity stop the 
allocations. If the BY As are not timely stopped, all excess allocations to District shall be 
returned to the City within thirty (30) days of receipt. 

13. Remedies for Breach of Agreement. In addition to termination of this Agreement 
for a material breach, the parties may exercise any other remedy available to them at law 
or in equity, including specific performance, injunctive relief, and writ of mandate. 

14. Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises regarding the interpretation or 
application of this Agreement or any determination or calculation thereunder, the parties 
agree upon the request of either of them to meet and attempt to resolve the same amicably 
for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. 

If the dispute is not otherwise resolved, and absent the need for emergency relief 
or to meet a statute of limitations, the parties agree to enter into mediation before 
initiating litigation. The parties shall mutually agree upon a mediator and each party 
shall pay one half (112) the cost of the mediator and bear their own costs for the 
mediation. The mediation shall be completed within ninety (90) days of notice of the 
intent to undergo mediation. If the mediation is not completed within 90 days of notice, a 
party may initiate litigation. The parties shall act in good faith and with due diligence to 
timely complete the mediation. 

If litigation is commenced before mediation due to one of the reasons mentioned 
above, the parties agree to immediately commence and complete mediation within 90 
days of the commencement of litigation as evidenced by the filing in court of a formal 
complaint, petition, or similar document. 

15. Modification. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing 
duly authorized and executed by the City and District. 

16. Enforcement. The City and District each acknowledge that this Agreement 
cannot bind or limit themselves or each other or their future governing bodies in the 
exercise of their discretionary legislative power. However, each binds itself that it will 
insofar as is legally possible, fully carry out the intent and purposes hereof, if necessary, 
by administrative and ministerial action independent of that legislation power and that 
this Agreement may be enforced by injunction or mandate or other writ to the full extent 
allowed by law. 

6 17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



17. Integration. With respect to the subject matter hereof, this Agreement is intended 
to be an integrated agreement and supersedes any and all previous negotiations proposals, 
commitments, writings and understandings of any nature whatsoever between the City 
and the District as to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

18. Notice. All notices, requests, determinations or other correspondence required or 
allowed by law or this Agreement to be provided by the parties shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given and received when delivered to the recipient by first-class mail (or 
an equal or better form of delivery) at the following addresses: 

City Manager 
City of Clovis 
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, California 93612 

DISTRICT 

Fire Chief 
Fresno County Fire Protection District 
210 South Academy A venue 
Sanger, California 93657 

By giving notice, either party may change its address for these purposes. 

19. Third Parties. This Agreement shall not be construed as or deemed an agreement 
for the benefit of any third party or parties, and no third party or parties shall have any 
right of action hereunder for any cause whatsoever. 

20. Subsequent District Agreements. District agrees that if, during the term of this 
Agreement, District negotiates with another municipality a property tax allocation 
agreement involving an annexation to the municipality and a detachment from the 
District which contains more favorable terms than this Agreement, District shall notify 
City within thirty (30) days of such agreement and offer those same terms to City. More 
favorable terms, means, but is not necessarily limited to, another municipality allocating 
to District a lower percentage of taxes than City allocates District under Section 2 of this 
Agreement. 

21. Attorneys Fees and Costs. In any action to enforce the provisions of this 
Agreement or for breach of the Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover from the 
other party, in addition to any damages, injunctive or other relief, all costs (whether or 
not allowable as "cost" items by law) reasonably incurred at, before and after trial or on 
appeal, including without limitation attorneys' and witness (expert and otherwise) fees, 
deposition costs, copying charges and other expenses. 

7 18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



22. Approval. The parties represent that this Agreement was approved by their 
respective governing boards at a properly noticed meeting. 

23. Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California. Venue for actions and proceedings between the parties related to this 
Agreement shall be Fresno County Superior Court for state actions and the Eastern 
District of California for any federal action. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement in Fresno 
County, California. 

FRESNO COUNTY FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT 

ATTEST: 

By~[)Az2:r 
Frank Del Testa, Board"'secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

William D. Ross, District Counsel 

J:\wdocs\0060 I \050\agt\00261482.DOC v.2 

ATTEST: 

-----

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

David J. Wolfe, City Attorney 

8 19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



N 

w E 

s 

Legend 

District Area & SOI 

City Areas 

Cill ""'""-o• ' 

Fresno Local Agency 
Fresno County 

Mid Valley Formed: 1949 Adopted: 
Westside Formed: 1936 Updated: 6/1 
Consolidated: 1994 Map 

0 5 10 20 
Miles 

District Area: 1,633,099 Acres 
Area: 1,633,099 Acres 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



IN 

:.::: 
-5+--·!+~+-~~-'-t-"+-i~·-f--~-~,~-

(l) 

0:: 
UJ 
-1 

~ 
u.. 

-
OLIVE 

LEG ND 

Stati n 85 

First In Area 

imits 
Map Projection: GCS_North_American_ 1983 

0 
1:130,000 

2 

ighways 

Major Roa 

Local 

HERNDON 

>
UJ 
0:: 

2 

-1 
UJ 

--~ 
UJ 
(l) 

-1 
---w+-·-·----'----~ 

Cl 

Map Date: January 18, 2013 

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



£ ~!Q!LIX3 

6 ,-

~ 
0 
c (/) 
m 
Al 
0 

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



Exhibit (4) 

BASE YEAR ALLOCATION 

The ten year :::iar·.,,,,1nP1"!r n1·n,11r11C><: for a payment to the District 100% of BY A a of 
10 years. BYA to up to a 2% annual constitutional increase if 1m(>OSE~a 

Example: BYA for a ov,,,,.,,...,nl of one acre valued at 

<>tr~•rtnio date of0.19% 

ETR: 0.19% 

BYA: 

Vear 1 

2 

3 

4 (add 2%) 

5 (add 2%} 

6 $209.78 2%) 

7 $213.97 (add 2%) 

8 $218.25 (add 2%) 

9 $222.62 (add 2%) 

10 $227.07 (add 2%) 

$2,080.46 (110% for 10 year term} 

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



QUAIL LAKES 

CLOVIS SOI 

.SHIELDS 

'Z 
(3 
0 
-' 

CLOVIS CITY LIMITS 0 

Cl 
0:: 

~ 
0 
UJ 
-' 

ASHLAN 

uail Lakes 
Exhibit 5 

0.5 1 

SHAW 

SHIELDS 

Date: 1/4/2013 

24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



oi'-\'N'"oCOooi 

TARPEY VILLAGE 

CLOVIS SOI 

CLOVIS CITY LIMITS 0 

SHAW 

rpey llag 
Exhibit 6 

0.25 

Miles 

0.5 

0::: 
w 
~ 
0 
u. 

Date: 1 /4/2013 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



1 
 

PROPERTY TAX ALLOCATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
AND 

THE FRESNO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

This Property Tax Allocation Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into and 
effective  March 1, 2020(“Effective Date”), between the City of Clovis, a California 
general law city and municipal corporation (“City”) and the Fresno County Fire Protection 
District (“District”), a local fire protection district organized and existing as a California 
Special District under provisions of the Fire Protection District Law of 1987 (Health & 
Safety Code Section 13800 et seq.,) with respect to the following Recitals, which are 
incorporated as a substantive part of this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is the primary provider of fire suppression, prevention, 
rescue, emergency medical services and hazardous material emergency response and 
other services relating to the protection of lives and property (“Fire Protection Services”) 
within its territorial limits, which includes areas near the incorporated centers of the 
County of Fresno (“County”), including the City. Current District boundaries are reflected 
in Exhibit 1, attached and incorporated by this reference. The District also provides Fire 
Protection Services to certain incorporated cities and substantial portions of 
unincorporated areas within the County; and 

WHEREAS, the City is the provider of Fire Protection Services within its 
corporate limits; and 

WHEREAS, the District's primary source of funding comes from general purpose 
ad valorum property tax revenue from all real property within its territory (property taxes). 
The revenue within involved tax rate areas is based on the combined “parent zone” and 
applicable “service zone" tax rates to the taxable value of the real property within such 
territory; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time in connection with proposed property development, 
territory within the District is annexed into the City and detached from the District.  
Although District no longer services properties that annex into the City and detach from 
the District, District wide service obligations and regional support are not reduced 
commensurately. To address the impact of the resulting loss of property tax revenue on 
District facilities, equipment and personnel and partially mitigate impacts upon the 
District from annexations and detachments, Fresno County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (“LAFCo”) policy requires the City and District to reach an agreement 
governing the transition of Fire Protection Services: and 

 

Attachment 2 

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



2 
 

WHEREAS, for the past 26 years District and the incorporated cities in the County 
have operated under transition agreements, the most recent covering the last Six (6) 
years (the “2013 Transition Agreement”), under which City agreed to pay District a yearly 
sum of money upon annexation and detachment of property reflecting a percentage of 
Property Taxes District would have received had the property not been annexed for a 
period of 10 years; and 

WHEREAS, the District and City desire to enter into a new agreement under 
substantially the same terms, removing obsolete language, and providing for a new 10-
year term with an option for the parties to extend the term for an additional 10 years; 
and 

WHEREAS, the intent of this Agreement is to apply to all unincorporated areas 
that are within the jurisdictional boundaries of the District which may be subject to 
annexation to the City. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Effect of Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated in and are a part of 
this Agreement. 

2. Allocation and Payment of Property Taxes. 

a. Upon the effective date of annexations/reorganizations of property 

(“Affected Territory”) into the City and detachment of the Affected Territory from the 
District, the real property tax previously imposed on the Affected Territory, and 

collected and allocated by Fresno County for the benefit of the District (“Base Year 
Allocation” or “BYA”) shall continue to be collected by the County from the City's portion 

of real property taxes, but paid to the City and the City shall allocate and pay the BYA 
for the Affected Territory to the District for a period of 10 years from the effective date 

of the specific reorganization.  The BYA shall include any increase up to two percent 
(2%) per annum imposed by the County in accordance with the constitutional rate. 

Other than a potential up to 2% annual increase in the BYA, the District will not be 
eligible to receive any increase in the BYA.  

For the purposes of this Agreement, the effective date of reorganizations and 
the date to be used for when the tax reallocation to District commences, shall be the 

date upon which the annexation of property is recorded with the County Recorder and 
California State Board of Equalization consistent with applicable law. 

Exhibit 2, attached and incorporated by this reference, sets forth the 

example of the calculation. 

 District shall be responsible for creating the tax allocation rate schedule 

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



3 
 

and providing City the ability for review and agreement prior to District invoicing the City 
for the BYA.  

 

b. The District shall notice and invoice the City to pay the applicable BYA to 

the District in July of each year.  Such notice shall include the applicable tax allocation 

rate schedule showing the BYA due the District.  City shall send the applicable payment 

to District within thirty (30) days after the City’s receipt of the District’s notice, invoice 

and tax allocation rate schedule. In the event the City does not pay to the District the 

applicable BYA due the District within said thirty (30) day period, the amount due the 

District shall be assessed interest at the legal rate commencing on the thirty first (31) 

day after the City’s receipt of the District’s notice and tax allocation rate schedule. The 

City’s failure to make the allocated monetary payment amount due the District within 

the time period set forth in this subparagraph 2b. shall be considered a material breach 

of this Agreement. 

 

c. The City and District agree that if it is estimated the annual allocation of 

BYA over the 10-year allocation period, which includes the 2% annual constitutional 

rate increase, is less than $10,000. City will pay the entire 10-year allocation in one (1) 

lump sum at the time the first annual allocation payment is due. 

 
2A. Inapplicability of this agreement to two Substantially Inhabited Areas.  The 
provisions of Section 2 relating to the BYA shall not apply to two substantially 
inhabited areas of the County if the City is forced to annex those areas, as described 
herein.  Should this occur, the City and District agree to enter into negotiations that will 
produce an agreement for these two areas in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 5. The two substantially inhabited areas are:  
 

 Quail Lake Estates, located between Shaw and Ashlan Avenues, east of McCall 
Avenue.  (Exhibit 3.) 

 

 Tarpey Village, located in the area generally bounded by Minnewawa, 
Sunnyside, Gettysburg and Shields Avenues. (Exhibit 4.) 

 
This exception, 2A, shall only apply to forced annexations as defined herein.  This 
exception shall not apply to annexations voluntarily initiated by the City.  Forced 
annexations shall mean: 
 

(a) Annexations mandated by the State of California. 
 
(b) Annexations requested by the County of Fresno and subsequently 

approved by LAFCo through negotiations with the City over tax sharing 
agreements or project specific development agreements. 

 
(c) Annexations required by LAFCo. 
 

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



4 
 

(d) Annexations initiated by the voters. 

3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of 10 years from the 
Effective Date, through December 31, 2029, and it shall replace in all respects the 2013 
Transition Agreement between the parties, except that obligations which by the terms 
expressed herein are intended to continue beyond the term of this Agreement shall 
continue until satisfied. This Agreement may also be extended by an additional period 
of 10 years from the expiration date with the agreement of both District and City.  

4. Affect of Annexations. Upon annexation of affected properties to City, those 
properties shall detach from the District, and all Property Taxes shall be allocated 
consistent with Agreement section 2 and existing laws, rules, policies and procedures 
established in the County, subject to any applicable agreement between City and the 

County. 

5. LAFCo Compliance. District and City agree that this Agreement is intended to 
satisfy the intent and purpose of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000. 

6. Non Opposition to Annexations. District represents and agrees that during the 
term of this Agreement, it will not oppose further annexation to the City. This District 
agreement does not extend to modifications to the City Sphere of Influence or required 
Municipal Service Reviews adopted by the Fresno County LAFCo. 

7. Accounting. District and City agree that their designated representatives shall 
have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. District and City agree to maintain such 
records for a possible audit for a minimum of four (4) years from the recording date of 
an annexation to the City and to allow access to such records for an audit during normal 
business hours. 

8. Termination. 

a. Termination Upon Expiration. This Agreement shall terminate upon 
expiration of its Term, if not extended by agreement. 

b. Termination Due to Invalidity. Should any material portion of this 
Agreement be declared invalid or inoperative by a court of competent jurisdiction, this 
entire Agreement as well as any ancillary documents entered into by the parties in order 
to fulfill the intent of this Agreement shall immediately be of no force and effect and this 
Agreement shall terminate in its entirety. 

c. Termination Due to Material Breach: Right to Cure. This Agreement may 
be terminated by either party for a material breach and a failure to cure that breach 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of a notice to cure. 

29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



5 
 

d. Termination Due to Change in Law. It is mutually understood and agreed 
that this Agreement shall terminate immediately and shall be of no further force and 
effect should substantial substantive changes occur in such statutory scheme or 
successor statutory schemes (whether by legislative or judicial action) which negate or 
frustrate the fundamental reasons or tenets of this Agreement, such termination to be in 
the entirety. Any party contending this section applies shall give written notice of 
termination pursuant to this section, which notice shall include an explanation of the 
reason(s) for such termination. 

9. Renewal of Agreement. Within 60 days after the date of commencement of the 
ninth year of this Agreement, the District and the City agree to meet and negotiate in 
good faith, in an attempt to agree upon the terms and conditions of an extension of this 
Agreement consistent with applicable law at the time. 

10. Remedies for Breach of Agreement. In addition to termination of this Agreement 

for a material breach, the parties may exercise any other remedy available to them at 
law or in equity, including specific performance, injunctive relief, and writ of mandate. 
 
11. Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises regarding the interpretation or 
application of this Agreement or any determination or calculation thereunder, the parties 
agree upon the request of either of them to meet and attempt to resolve the same 
amicably for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. 

If the dispute is not otherwise resolved, and absent the need for emergency relief 
or to meet a statute of limitations, the parties agree to enter into mediation before 
initiating litigation. The parties shall mutually agree upon a mediator and each party shall 
pay one half (1/2) the cost of the mediator and bear their own costs for the mediation. 
The mediation shall be completed within sixty (60) days of notice of the intent to undergo 
mediation. If the mediation is not completed within sixty (60) days of notice, a party may 
initiate litigation. The parties shall act in good faith and with due diligence to timely 
complete the mediation. 

If litigation is commenced before mediation due to one of the reasons mentioned 
above, the parties agree to immediately commence and complete mediation within sixty 
(60) days of the commencement of litigation as evidenced by the filing in court of a 
formal complaint, petition, or similar document. 

12. Modification. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing duly 
authorized and executed by the City and District. 

13. Enforcement. The City and District each acknowledge that this Agreement cannot 
bind or limit themselves or each other or their future governing bodies in the exercise of 
their discretionary legislative power. However, each binds itself that it will insofar as is 
legally possible, fully carry out the intent and purposes hereof, if necessary, by 
administrative and ministerial action independent of that legislation power and that this 
Agreement may be enforced by injunction or mandate or other writ to the full extent 
allowed by law. 

30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



6 
 

14. Integration. With respect to the subject matter hereof, this Agreement is intended 
to be an integrated agreement and supersedes any and all previous negotiations 
proposals, commitments, writings and understandings of any nature whatsoever 
between the City and the District as to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

15. Notice. All notices, requests, determinations or other correspondence required or 
allowed by law or this Agreement to be provided by the parties shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed given and received when delivered to the recipient by first-class mail 
(or an equal or better form of delivery) at the following addresses: 
 
CITY 
City Manager 
City of Clovis 
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, California 93612 
 
DISTRICT 
Fire Chief 
Fresno County Fire Protection District 
210 South Academy Avenue 
Sanger, California 93657 

By giving notice, either party may change its address for these purposes. 

16. Third Parties. This Agreement shall not be construed as or deemed an agreement 
for the benefit of any third party or parties, and no third party or parties shall have any 
right of action hereunder for any cause of action whatsoever. 

17. Subsequent District Agreements. District agrees that if, during the term of this 
Agreement, District negotiates a property tax allocation involving an annexation to the 
municipality and a detachment from the District with any other municipality which 
contains more favorable terms than this Agreement, District shall notify City within thirty 
(30) days of such agreement and offer those same terms to City. More favorable terms, 
means, but is not necessarily limited to, another municipality allocating to District a lower 
percentage of taxes than City allocates District under Section 2 of this Agreement. 

18. Attorney’s Fees and Costs. In any action to enforce the provisions of this 
Agreement or for breach of the Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover from the 
other party, in addition to any damages, injunctive or other relief, all costs (whether or 
not allowable as “cost” items by law) reasonably incurred at, before and after trial or on 
appeal, including without limitation attorneys' and witness (expert and otherwise) fees, 
deposition costs, copying charges and other expenses. 

19. Approval. The parties represent that this Agreement was approved by their 
respective governing boards at a properly noticed meeting. 

31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



7 
 

20. Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California. Venue for actions and proceedings between the parties related to 
this Agreement shall be in the Eastern District of California for any federal action and, 
unless otherwise agreed by the parties, in Fresno County Superior Court for state 
actions. 

21. Agreement Mutually Drafted.  Each party has participated jointly in the drafting of 
this Agreement, which each Party acknowledges is the result of extensive negotiations 
between the Parties, and the language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
the language chosen by the Parties to express their mutual intent. If an ambiguity or 
question of intent or interpretation arises, then this Agreement will accordingly be 
construed as drafted jointly by the parties, and no presumption or burden of proof will 
arise favoring or disfavoring any Party to this Agreement by virtue of the authorship of 
any of the provisions of this Agreement. The captions, headings and table of contents 
contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any 
way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

22. Notification to County Auditor-Controller/Treasurer/Tax-Collector. Immediately 
after the Effective Date of this Agreement, City and District shall furnish a fully executed 
copy of this Agreement to the Fresno County Auditor-Controller/Treasurer Tax-Collector 
(“County Auditor') at the address listed below. Any Agreement amendment, upon its 
becoming effective, shall also be furnished to the County Auditor by the City and the 
District. 
 
Fresno County Auditor-Controller/Treasurer Tax-Collector 
2281 Tulare Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 
 
 
 
 
 

Signatures on next page

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



8 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement in Fresno 
County, California. 

 
FRESNO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
       Mike Del Puppo, Board President 
 
Date:  _____________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:  _____________________________ 
       Frank Del Testa, Board Secretary 
 
Date:  _____________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
William D. Ross, District Counsel 
 
Date:  _____________ 

CITY OF CLOVIS 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ 
       Luke Serpa, City Manager 
 
Date:  ______________ 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:  ____________________________ 
       John Holt, City Clerk 
 
Date:  ______________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David J. Wolfe, City Attorney 
 
Date:  ______________ 

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



9 
 

  
 

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



10 
 

 
 

Exhibit 2 

City of Clovis/ Fresno County Fire Protection 

District Transition Agreement 

Base Year Allocation of RO-18-2 Ashlan/Highland SW Reorganization 

 
This agreement is intended to execute the Transition Agreement entered into between the 

City of Clovis and the Fresno County Fire Protection District effective March 1, 2020. The 

agreement provides for a payment to the District for 100% of the Base Year Allocation (BYA) 

for a period of (10) years. BYA to include up to a 2% annual constitutional increase determined 

by the State Board of Equalization. Year 1 payment due District the fiscal year following the 

year the City receives its allocation of property taxes from this annexation. Payments due the 

District for each fiscal year (July 1 - June 30) will be made no later than August 30 each year 

for the prior fiscal year. City and District agree that total payments for annexations over a ten-

year period that are less than $10,000, City will pay the District a one-time payment in total 

for that annexation.  

    
   Recording Date: 04/16/2018 
   Tax Roll Used: 2017  
   Tax Rate Area (TRA) # 071-041  

Total Assessed Value $5,227,137.00  

Net Assessed Value (NAV) at Recording= $5,227,137 

Equivalent Tax Rate (ETR) = 0.190989 (See Next Page for Calculation Method) 

Base Year Allocation (BYA) = $9,983.26 

 

   Year  BYA +          Annual Increase  Payment Due 

Year 1 Payment  2019  $9,983.26    $9,983.26 

Year 2 Payment  2020  $10,182.93 2.00%   $10,182.93 

Year 3 Payment  2021  $10,386.59 2.00%   $10,386.59 

Year 4 Payment  2022  $10,594.32 2.00%   $10,594.32 

Year 5 Payment  2023  $10,806.21 2.00%   $10,806.21 

Year 6 Payment  2024  $11,022.33 2.00%   $11,022.33 

Year 7 Payment  2025  $11,242.78 2.00%   $11,242.78 

Year 8 Payment  2026  $11,467.64 2.00%   $11,467.64 

Year 9 Payment  2027  $11,696.99 2.00%   $11,696.99 

Year 10 Payment 2028  $11,930.93 2.00%   $11,930.93 

Total Amount Due             $109,313.98 

           ______ 

Mark A. Johnson     Luke Serpa 
Chief        City Manager 
Fresno County Fire Protection District City of Clovis 
 
  ______      _______ 
Date       Date 
 

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



11 
 

The Base Year Allocation (BYA) for an annexation means the sum derived by: Multiplying the 
Equivalent Tax Rate (ETR) by the Net Assessed Value (NAV) of the annexation. The ETR equals the 
sum of the Equivalent Tax Rate for the Parent Zone (ETRPZ) plus the Equivalent Tax Rate for any 
District Service Zone in the Annexation, in this example, Service Zone 10 (ETRZ10). The ETRPZ equals 
the Net Tax Levy for the Parent Zone (NTLPZ) divided by the Total Assessed Value of the Parent Zone 
(TAVPZ). The ETRPZ10 equals the Net Tax Levy for Service Zone 10 (NTLZ10) divided by the Total 
Assessed Value of Service Zone 10 (TAVZ10). 
 
Expressed in equations, the calculations shall be made as follows: 
 
BYA = ETR x NAV 
 
ETR = ETRPZ + ETRPZ10 
 
ETRPZ = NTLPZ ÷ TAVPZ 
 
ETRZ10 = NTLZ10 ÷ TAVZ10 

 
Where:  BYA means “Base Year Allocation” 
  ETR means “Equivalent Tax Rate” 
  NAV means “Net Assessed Value” 
  ETRPZ means “Equivalent Tax Rate for the Parent Zone” 
  ETRZ10 means “Equivalent Tax Rate for Service Zone 10” 
  NTLPZ means “Net Tax Levy for the Parent Zone**” 
  TAVPZ means Total Assessed Value for the Parent Zone*” 
  NTLZ10 means “Net Tax Levy for Service Zone 10**” 
  TAVZ10 means “Total Assessed Value for Service Zone 10*” 
 
*The Total Assessed Value for the Parent or Service Zones include both Secured and Unsecured 
amount totals added together from the Fresno County Schedule of Levy’s, from the Tax Roll at the date 
of recording. 
 
**The Net Tax Levy for the Parent or Service Zones include both Secured and Unsecured amount totals 
added together from the Fresno County Schedule of Levy’s, from the Tax Roll at the date of recording. 
 
 
Calculation Example: 
 
Net Tax Levy of the Parent Zone*   $13,510,313 
Total Assessed Value of the Parent Zone        ÷ $17,266,669,708 
Equivalent Tax Rate – Parent Zone         = 0.078245 
  
Net Tax Levy of Service Zone 10*   $4,454,026 
Total Assessed Value of Service Zone 10        ÷ $3,950,526,660 
Equivalent Tax Rate – Service Zone 10        = 0.112744 
 
 
Equivalent Tax Rate – Parent Zone             0.078245 
Equivalent Tax Rate – Service Zone 10                 + 0.112744 
Combined Equivalent Tax Rate (ETR)                   = 0.190989 

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



12 
 

37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



13 
 

 

38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Res. 20-___, Amending the City’s FY 
19-20 Classification and Compensation Plans to Adopt a Property 
and Evidence Supervisor Classification and Salary Range; and 
Approval - Res. 20-___, Authorizing Amendments to the Senior 
Property and Evidence Technician Classification; and Approval - 
Res. 20-___, Amending the City’s FY 19-20 Position Allocation Plan. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 20-____, Adopt Supervisor Classification  
2. Res. 20-____, Amendments to Senior Property Tech Classification 
3. Res. 20-____, Allocation Plan 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve Resolution 20-___, Amending the City’s FY 19-20 
Classification and Compensation Plan to Adopt a Property and Evidence Supervisor 
Classification and Salary Range; Approve Resolution 20-___, Amending the Senior Property 
and Evidence Technician Classification; and Approve Resolution 20- ___, Amending the 
City’s FY 19-20 Position Allocation Plan within the Police Department. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Police Department has a need to add a Property and Evidence Supervisor classification. 
The proposed classification will be responsible for the supervision and operation of the 
Department’s property and evidence room. The Police Department is recommending the 
addition of one (1) Property and Evidence Supervisor classification to the Position Allocation 
Plan. It has also been determined that it would be beneficial to update the Senior Property 
and Evidence Technician Classification and revise the education and experience sections. 
Modification of the City’s Classification, Compensation, and Position Allocation Plans require 
the City Council’s approval. 
 

39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



BACKGROUND 
The Police Department has a need to add a Property and Evidence Supervisor classification.  
The incumbent will be responsible for supervising the property room staff and ensuring that 
proper evidence storage and proper procedures are followed. In addition, this classification 
will be responsible for researching case status in California Law Enforcement 
Telecommunication System (CLETS) and communicating with the City Attorney’s office and 
the investigation unit. With the growth of the City, it is necessary to add this position and 
update the Position Allocation Plan. This new classification will be assigned to the 
Management Group.  
 
It is recommended that the Position Allocation Plan be amended to add one (1) Property and 
Evidence Supervisor position. Modification of the City’s Position Allocation Plan requires 
approval of the City Council. 
 
A recent analysis of the Senior Property and Evidence Technician Classification identified a 
need for minor revisions and updates to the classification. The education and experience 
sections were also updated to attract more applicants. This revision will assist with any 
recruitments that may occur in the future. 
 
The Senior Property and Evidence Technician Classification is assigned to the Clovis Public 
Safety Employees Association (CPSEA) bargaining unit for purposes of employee 
representation. Representatives of the CPSEA bargaining unit have been advised of the 
proposed revisions to the classification and are supportive of the recommended changes. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Senior Property and Evidence Supervisor will most likely be added in June. The fiscal 
impact for salary and benefits in FY 19-20 will be approximately $12,000. There are 
adequate funds in the budget to cover the cost of this additional position. Annual cost for FY 
20-21 is anticipated to be $146,000 for salary and benefits. No fiscal impact for revisions to 
the Senior Property and Evidence Technician classification. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Addition of the Property and Evidence Supervisor classification is necessary in order to meet 
the needs of the Police Department. It was also determined that the Senior Property and 
Evidence Technician requires updating. The recommended changes to the City’s 
Classification, Compensation, and Position Allocation Plans require Council approval.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Personnel staff will add the new supervisor classification, and amend the existing senior 
classification to the City’s Classification and Compensation Plan. The position allocation in 
the Police Department will be modified as noted in Attachment 3.  
 
Prepared by:       Lori Shively, Personnel/Risk Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 

RESOLUTION 20-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLANS 
BY ADOPTING A PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE SUPERVISOR CLASSIFICATION 

 

The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the City has a need for a Property and Evidence 
Supervisor classification to provide administrative management support; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Police Department currently has a need for 

a Property and Evidence Supervisor; and, 
 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the appropriate salary range for the Property 
and Evidence classification is $7,570 to $9,201 per month; and, 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that it is appropriate to assign the Property and 
Evidence Supervisor classification to the Management Group. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the 
City’s FY19-20 Classification and Compensation Plans shall be modified to include 
the Property and Evidence Supervisor classification (Attachment A) with a monthly 
salary range of $7,570 to $9,201 per month. 

 
  * * * * * * * * * * * * *           

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on February 3, 2020 by the following vote to wit: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
Dated: February 3, 2020 
 

 
___________________________  __________________________ 

                   Mayor                            City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1 

41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
Attachment A of Attachment 1 

PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE SUPERVISOR 

DEFINITION 

Under direction, plan, organize, direct and supervise operations of the property and 

evidence room, within the Police Department. Responsible for the acceptance, proper 

storage, and release of property and evidence stored in the Police Department’s evidence 

room; and to perform related work as required. 
 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 

Positions in this classification are responsible for the supervision and operation of the 

Police Department's property and evidence functions and systems. Reporting to the 

Administrative Captain or Lieutenant, positions in this class have considerable 

independence in selecting work methods from a variety of standard methods or 

procedures. Instructions given by a supervisor generally do not provide all of the 

information needed to complete the assignment. Incumbents are expected to resolve 

most problems confronted through the application of judgment and precedent, referring 

to the supervisors only those which involve the establishment of new procedures or which 

involve solutions that are inconsistent with departmental procedures and policies. 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 

Plan, prioritize, assign, supervise and review the work of staff involved in police property 

and evidence operations. Recommend and assist in the implementation of goals and 

objectives; establish schedules and methods for police property and evidence room 

operations; implement policies and procedures. Evaluate operations and activities of 

assigned responsibilities; recommend improvements and modifications; prepare various 

reports on operations and activities. Participate in budget preparation and administration; 

prepare cost estimates for budget recommendations; submit justifications for staffing, 

equipment, material and supplies; monitor and control expenditure. Develop and 

implement policies and procedures for receipt, storage, security, and release of property 

under the control of the property division; perform regular, detailed audits of stored items; 

ensure integrity of records associated with inventory control and documentation; serve as 

liaison with investigations and patrol staff regarding property handling and security. 

Research providers and purchase property and evidence packaging, cleaning, and other 

supplies equipment, and materials as necessary; research service providers and make 

recommendations regarding contract services. Research case status in CLETS and other 

applicable systems; communicate with the City Attorney’s Office and/or consult with 

detectives as necessary; process property dispositions and update property and evidence 

computer database with release information; send property release letters to owners. 

Research firearms ownership history to assist in release of firearms; ensure compliance 

with Department of Justice Law Enforcement Gun Release background check before 

release of firearms; coordinate with City Attorney’s Office regarding firearms confiscation 

petitions; receive status updates on firearms after court hearings; send release letters 

where appropriate or prepare firearm for destruction per court order. Secure court order  

           

42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 

 

for the destruction of controlled substances and firearms on adjudicated cases. Enter 

crime gun information into CLETS; research officer’s report for required information. 

Develop and implement policies and procedures for crime scene processing. May testify 

in court regarding property chain of custody issues and evidence collection. Participate in 

the selection of staff; coordinate staff training; conduct performance evaluations; 

recommend discipline; implement discipline procedures as directed. Answer questions 

and provide information to the public as appropriate; research questions and recommend 

corrective action as necessary to resolve issues. Build and maintain positive working 

relationships with co-workers, other City employees, and the public using principles of 

good customer service. Perform related duties as assigned. 

 

LICENSE AND CERTIFICATION 

License Required: 

 Possession of a valid California driver’s license and a good driving record. 

 

Certification Desirable: 

 Possession of Property and Evidence Management certificate issued by the California 

Association for Property and Evidence is highly desirable. 

 

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 

Education: 

 Graduation from an accredited college or university with a Bachelor’s Degree in 

Business Administration, Criminology, Public Administration, Forensic Science or 

closely related field. 

 

And  

 

Experience: 

 Three (3) years of Property and Evidence or comparable positions requiring 

meticulous inventory and record keeping work in a Public Safety environment. 

 

QUALIFICATIONS 

Knowledge of: 

 Principles and practices of law enforcement property and evidence room   

management; 

 Methods, procedures, principles, practices, and terminology used in property and 

evidence handling, processing, recording, preservation, storage, and release; 

 Methods, procedures, principles, practices, and terminology used in crime scene 

investigation including handling, processing, recording, preservation, storage, and      

release of evidence; 

 Court procedures regarding the handling and storage of evidence; 

43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 

 Legal guidelines pertaining to the maintenance and control of evidence; 

 Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations including those relating    

to the safekeeping, processing and disposition of property and evidence; 

 Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluations; 

 Principles of budget monitoring; 

 Principles and practices of safety management; 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment. 

 

Ability to: 

 Organize, implement and direct a police property and evidence operations; 

 On a continuous basis, know and understand all aspects of the job; intermittently   

analyze work papers, reports and special projects; identify and interpret technical and 

numerical information; observe and problem solve operational and technical policy 

and procedures; 

 Interpret and explain pertinent property and evidence unit and department policies 

and procedures; 

 Assist in the development and monitoring of an assigned program budget; 

 Develop and recommend policies and procedures related to assigned operations; 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 

course of work; 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; 

 Supervise, train and evaluate assigned staff. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 

Incumbent in this class is required to successfully perform the essential functions as 

specified: 

 Work is both sedentary and active at varying times; on a continuous basis, sit at desk 

for long periods of time; intermittently twist to reach equipment surrounding desk; 

perform simple grasping and fine manipulation;  

 Incumbent is required to travel within and outside of the City with the ability to attend 

periodic evening meetings or meetings outside of regularly scheduled shift; 

 Strength: Light work-lifting, carrying, lifting, and moving objects weighing less than 50 

pounds short and long distances; 

 Conceptual: May be exposed to photographs of a graphic nature, evidence related to 

gruesome crime scenes, and evidence of a sensitive nature; 

 Meyers-Milias Brown Act and are exempt employees under the Fair Labor Standards 

Act. 

 
 

44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 
 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION 20-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 

AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR THE  
SENIOR PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN CLASSIFICATION 

 
The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that amendments to the classification and updates 

to the education and experience sections of the Senior Property and Evidence 
classification are necessary in order to recruit for this position; and, 

 

WHEREAS, modification of the City’s Classification Plan requires authorization by the 
City Council. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the 
City’s Classification Plan shall be modified to include the revised Senior Property 
and Evidence Technician Classification specification in Attachment A. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * 
 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on February 3, 2020, by the following vote to wit: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 Dated: February 3, 2020 
 
 

___________________________  __________________________ 
                   Mayor                             City Clerk 

 
    

 
 
 
 

Attachment 2 

45

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 
 

SENIOR PROPERTY AND EVIDENCE TECHNICIAN 
 
 
DEFINITION 
Under general supervision, administers all aspects of the department’s property functions. 
Responsible for developing and implementing efficient procedures and operations 
pertaining to the receipt, storage, accounting, retrieval, control and disposition of all 
seized property, including associated records, forms, reports and related statistical 
information; and to perform related work as required.   
 
CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 
The Senior Property and Evidence Room Technician is the advanced experienced 
classification in the Property Room classification series. Positions in this class provide 
lead direction to other employees and have considerable independence in selecting work 
methods from a variety of standard methods or procedures. Instructions given by the 
supervisor generally do not provide all of the information needed to complete the 
assignment.  Incumbents are expected to resolve most problems confronted through the 
application of judgment and precedent, referring to supervisor only those which involve 
the establishment of new procedures or which involve solutions which are inconsistent 
with departmental procedures and policies.  Work is differentiated from that of the 
Property and Evidence Room Technician by the application and complexities of projects 
assigned.  Incumbents of the class are responsible for coordinating and leading the 
activities of the Property and Evidence Room. 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
Leads and coordinates the Property and Evidence Room activities; engaged in the 
custody and safekeeping of a variety of articles which are held as evidence in connection 
with the investigation of crimes and items held for safekeeping; ensures the chain of 
custody is maintained; coordinates the receipt, tagging, storage, retrieval, and release or 
disposal of evidence and property; participates in and is responsible for ensuring the 
maintenance of records on all evidence and property; executes the release of impounded 
property; coordinates the removal of property and evidence through disposal, sale or 
auction; processes weapons for disposal through sale, auction or through destruction; 
trains and answers questions from law enforcement personnel on the Property and 
Evidence computer system, Property and Evidence Room policies and procedures and 
the use of appropriate forms; testify in court regarding property that has been in custody; 
makes recommendations concerning changes in forms, procedures, and physical layout;  
analyzes current and future property storage needs; develops and makes 
recommendations to modernize and improve operations and procedures; ensures 
compliance with court orders; keeps abreast of and ensures compliance with 
departmental rules, regulations and policies, as well as laws and codes pertaining to the 
storage and disposition of various types of property; develops and maintains statistical 
information and reports pertaining to the processing of property; and performs related 
duties as required. 
 

 

Attachment A of Attachment 2 
46

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 
 

 
                 
 
LICENSE REQUIRED 

 Possession of a valid Class C California driver’s license and a good driving record. 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 
Any combination of education and experience equivalent to graduation from  
Education: 

 High School diploma or equivalent  
 
And  
 
Experience:  

 Two (2) Four (4) years of experience as a Property and Evidence Room Technician 
or similar position with a law enforcement agency. Completion of thirty (30) semester 
units from an accredited college or university may be substituted for one (1) year of 
experience. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS 
Knowledge of: 

 Methods and procedures for receiving storing, inventorying, issuing and safeguarding 
property and evidence; 

 Procedures and methods of inventory and accounting for the disposition of property 
and evidence; 

 Federal, state and civil laws, codes and regulations related to property and evidence 
control under the custody of law enforcement agencies; 

 Basic principles, practices and methods of warehousing; 

 Techniques for safely handling firearms; 

 Safety practices involved in the handling of body fluids and other potentially hazardous 
items and other safety regulations pertaining to a storeroom and warehousing facility; 

 Operation of a computer terminal; 

 Principles and techniques of effective supervisory practices and office management. 
 
Ability to: 

 Recommend, develop, and implement storage, security, and accounting procedures 
for property warehouse activities; 

 Assign, plan, supervise, and train others; 

 Interpret and apply the laws and ordinances under which property is held and 
disposed; 

 Analyze, evaluate, organize, develop, and improve inventory and accounting 
procedures; 

 Communicate effectively both orally and in writing; 

 Operate a computer terminal; 

 Meet schedules and time lines; 

47

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 
 

 Remain in a standing position for extended periods of time; 

 Understand and follow oral and written instructions; 

 Work cooperatively with others; 

 Work with contaminated property and/or hazardous waste materials using normal 
protective equipment; 

 Observe and monitor departmental practices and procedures to determine 
compliance with prescribed operating or safety standards; 

 Safely operate a City vehicle; 

 Safely handle and store firearms, narcotics, and evidential property; 

 Work in a fast paced work environment with constant interruptions. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 

 Work is both sedentary and active at varying times; 

 Conceptual: May be exposed to photographs of graphic nature, evidence related to 
gruesome crime scenes, and evidence sensitive in nature; 

 Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard;  

 Seeing to view monitors; 

 Hearing and speaking to exchange information and make presentations;  

 Carrying, lifting, and moving objects weighing less than 50 pounds short and long 
distances;  

 Sitting or standing for extended periods of time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



RESOLUTION 20-___ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY19-20 POSITION ALLOCATION PLAN 

 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the FY19-20 Position Allocation Plan in the Police Department was approved 

as part of the FY19-20 City budget adoption process; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a review of the staffing needs of the City indicates that the addition of one 
(1) Property and Evidence Supervisor position is necessary in order to provide 
administrative management support for the Police Department; and,  

 
WHEREAS, amending the City’s adopted FY19-20 Position Allocation Plan requires City 

Council authorization. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the 

City’s FY19-20 Position Allocation Plan shall be amended as noted in Attachment 
A. 

 

 * * * * * * * * *  
The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on February 3, 2020 by the following vote to wit: 
 
AYES:   
 

NOES:  
 

ABSENT:  
 

ABSTAIN:  
 
Dated: February 3, 2020 
 
 

___________________________  __________________________ 
                    Mayor                                      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 3 

49

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



POSITION ALLOCATION ADJUSTMENT BY DEPARTMENT FY19-20 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT                                                   NUMBER OF POSITIONS 
          
 
Police Department 
 
Add:  Property and Evidence Supervisor 1.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A of Attachment 3 

50

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval - Res. 20-___, Authorizing 
Amendments to the Construction Manager Classification. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 20-____ 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve Resolution 20-___, authorizing amendments to the Construction 
Manager classification. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
It is necessary to revise the Construction Manager classification in order to update the 
education and experience sections of the classification, and a few other minor changes. 
Modification of the City’s Classification Plans requires the City Council’s approval. 
 
BACKGROUND 
An analysis was conducted of the Construction Manager classification in advance of an 
upcoming recruitment. The analysis revealed that the classification is in need of revision to 
the education and experience section to clarify college degree requirements and provide the 
ability to substitute experience for some of the education requirements. Other minor revisions 
to the classification are included in the update.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Construction Manager classification is recommended for revision in order to offer 
education and experience alternatives that will broaden the pool of qualified candidates. The 
recommended changes to the City’s Classification Plan require Council approval.   

51

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The City’s Classification Plan will be updated to include the revised Construction Manager 
classification.   

 
 
Prepared by:       Shonna Halterman, General Services Director 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

52

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION 20- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER CLASSIFICATION 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that amendments to the classification, and updates 

to the education and experience sections of Construction Manager classification 
are necessary in order to recruit for this position; and, 

 

WHEREAS, modification of the City’s Classification Plan requires authorization by the 
City Council. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the 
City’s Classification Plan shall be modified to include the revised Construction 
Manager Classification specification in Attachment A. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * 
 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on February 3, 2020, by the following vote to wit: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 Dated: February 3, 2020 
 
 

___________________________  __________________________ 
                   Mayor                             City Clerk 

 
    

 

53

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



Attachment A of Attachment 1 

Construction Manager 
 
DEFINITION 
Under direction, plan, assign, and supervise the work of field personnel engaged in the 

technical inspection and contract administration of public works construction and 

improvement projects; administer and monitor private construction development 

contracts; ensure enforcement of city improvement standards in construction projects; 

assist in overall project administration; and to perform related work as required. 

 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 

Under direction of the City Engineer or an Assistant Public Works Director, positions in 
this classification are responsible for the supervision of engineering inspection of public 
works construction projects in the city.  Incumbents exercise supervision and are 
responsible over to make assignments, set priorities, train, review the work of 
subordinates, prepare performance evaluations, process grievances at the appropriate 
level, recommend employment, and recommend and take disciplinary action.  Incumbents 
have considerable independence in selecting work methods from a variety of standard 
methods or procedures.  Instructions given by the supervisor generally do not provide all 
of the information needed to complete the assignment.  Incumbents are expected to 
resolve most problems confronted through the application of judgment and precedent, 
referring to the supervisor only those which involve the establishment of new procedures 
or which involve solutions that are inconsistent with departmental procedures and 
policies. 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
Supervise the operations of the Construction Management Section within the Engineering 
Division of the Planning and Development Services Department or the Public Utilities 
Department; plan, coordinate, and supervise the activities of subordinate engineering 
inspectors; perform inspection and contract administration on complex municipal capital 
improvement projects; oversee and insure compliance with Federal, State, and other 
grant requirements associated with construction projects; assist the project team in 
ensuring that labor and contract compliance requirements are explained and met during 
the pre-bid and pre-contract award phase of construction; monitor contractors and 
subcontractors activity during the course of construction to ensure compliance with State 
and Federal labor laws, the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (DBRA), and Federal Labor 
Standards Provisions; California State labor codes and laws; conduct on-site employee 
interviews and labor compliance investigations; resolve labor compliance problems and 
coordinate labor compliance activities with various team members and consultants; 
prepare written reports on inspection activities and review monthly pay estimates; review 
plans and specifications for engineering soundness and conformance to established 
standards; make difficult mathematical estimates concerning inspections of municipal 
facilities, such as project estimates, earth work computations, progress estimates, and 
construction reports; respond to requests from the public, private engineers, and 
contractors regarding proper construction and maintenance techniques utilized in 
municipal construction projects; review subordinates daily reports, cost estimates, field 
changes, contract bid items in preparation of payment, and as-built drawings; assist the 

54

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

City Engineer or an Assistant Public Utilities Director in general project administration; 
prepare staff reports for City Council; prepare the section budget; develop and administer 
safety and training programs; establish standards of work performance for subordinates; 
attend and participate in conferences and meetings; and perform related tasks work as 
required. 
 
LICENSE REQUIRED 

 Possession of a valid and appropriate California Driver's License and a good 
driving record. 

 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 
Education: 

 Graduation from an accredited four-year college or university with a and 
possession of a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering, Industrial Technology, or a 
closely related field.   

 Experience over and above the five years’ experience requirements stated below 
may be substituted for up to two years’ education in the following manner: 

o An additional three years’ experience in public works projects (a total of 
eight years’ experience) for one year of education. 

o An additional six years’ experience in public works projects (a total of eleven 
years’ experience) for two years of education. 

 
Experience: 

 Five (5) years in construction inspection and/or project management with a 
minimum of two (2) years of experience in public works construction, and a 
minimum of one (1) year in a supervisory capacity. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS 
Knowledge of: 

 City Standard Specifications, State Standard Specifications, and applicable State 
 and local laws; 

 Construction and testing materials in the field and laboratory; 

 Methods and practices involved in engineering, building construction, and 
inspection procedures; 

 Surveying techniques; 

 Construction project related mathematics, i.e., algebra and trigonometry; 

 Principles and practices of supervision, training, and appropriate safety 
precautions and procedures; 

 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation; 

 Applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, ordinances, and policies; 

 Appropriate safety precautions and procedures. 
 
Ability to: 

 Interpret construction plans and specifications and determine conformance with 
 established policies, regulations, and applicable laws; 

 Enforce the provisions of specifications; 

55

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 Perform difficult technical computations and make estimates of materials and 
cost; 

 Detect substandard design, materials, and workmanship in construction projects; 

 Prepare comprehensive technical reports; 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with officials, co-workers, 
organizations, contractors, engineers, and the general public subordinates, public 
groups and organizations, City officials, and private and governmental agencies; 

 Supervise, plan, and assign the work of subordinates. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 

 Strength: medium work - lifting, carrying and/or pushing 25 pounds with frequent 
lifting and/or carrying objects weighing up to 50 pounds; 

 Incumbent may be required to attend periodic evening meetings; 

 Incumbent is required to travel within and out of the city to attend meetings; 

 These positions are designated as confidential under the Meyers-Millas Brown 
Act and are exempt employees under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

56

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval - Res. 20-___, Authorizing 
Amendments to the Director of Planning and Development Services 
Classification. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution  

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve Resolution 20-___, authorizing amendments to the Director of 
Planning and Development Services classification. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
It is necessary to revise the Director of Planning and Development Services classification in 
order to update the duties performed, and update the education and experience sections of 
the classification. Modification of the City’s Classification Plans requires the City Council’s 
approval. 
 
BACKGROUND 
An analysis was conducted of the Director of Planning and Development Services 
classification in advance of an upcoming recruitment. The analysis revealed that the 
classification is in need of revision in order to accurately depict the current scope of duties 
that will be required of the Director of Planning and Development Services. The 
recommended changes include the addition of clarifying verbiage regarding current duties 
needed to perform in this classification. The changes also include updating the education 
and experience sections to clarify degree requirements and update supervisory experience 
of the classification. These updated classification amendments will reflect the current needs 
of the Planning and Development Services Department.   
 
 

57

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The Director of Planning and Development Services classification is recommended for 
revision in order to reflect accurate descriptions of duties, education and experience. The 
recommended changes to the City’s Classification Plan require Council approval.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The City’s Classification Plan will be updated to include the revised Director of Planning and 
Development Services classification.   

 
 
Prepared by:       Lori Shively, Personnel/Risk Manager 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

58

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 
Attachment 1 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION 20- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S CLASSIFICATION PLAN FOR THE  

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES CLASSIFICATION 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that amendments to the classification, and updates 

to the education and experience sections of Director of Planning and Development 
Services classification are necessary in order to recruit for this position; and, 

 

WHEREAS, modification of the City’s Classification Plan requires authorization by the 
City Council. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the 
City’s Classification Plan shall be modified to include the revised Director of 
Planning and Development Services Classification specification in Attachment A. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * 
 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on February 3, 2020, by the following vote to wit: 
 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 Dated: February 3, 2020 
 
 

___________________________  __________________________ 
                   Mayor                             City Clerk 

 
    

 
 
 
 

59

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



Attachment A of Attachment 1 
 

Director of Planning and Development Services 
 

DEFINITION 
Under administrative direction to plan, organize, and direct the planning, engineering, 
building, and community investment programs in the Planning and Development Services 
Department; to serve as the City Planner, to serve as the executive officer and secretary 
to the Planning Commission; to advise the City Manager and City Council regarding 
planning and development matters; and to perform related work as required. 
 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 

This single class position represents the chief executive and operational officer of the 
Planning and Development Services Department.  The incumbent is responsible to the 
City Manager and the City Council for the orderly development of the City and exercises 
considerable judgment and discretion in the administration and direction of the 
department and its operations.  The Director of Planning and Development Services 
exercises supervision over other managerial employees of the Planning and 
Development Services Department.  The incumbent is responsible to make work 
assignments, set priorities, train, review work, prepare performance evaluations, process 
bargaining unit grievances, recommend employment, and recommend and take 
disciplinary action.  This position acts with a high degree of independence of action in the 
assigned area of responsibility.  Direction received consists of the assignment of the 
responsibility to attain objectives according to policy guidelines.  The incumbent is 
expected to develop methods and procedures to solve problems encountered.  Except 
where a deviation in policy is involved, most work is not reviewed directly by the 
supervisor and when work is reviewed, the review is directed toward final outcomes and 
results.  This is an exempt position in which the incumbent serves at the will of the City 
Manager. 
 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
Direct, plan, organize, and participate in the work involved in planning for and facilitating 
the orderly development of urban areas; administer or direct the administration of 
subdivision and land use regulations; analyze community needs and develop programs 
to meet the needs in accordance with City policy and available resources; coordinate the 
preparation and adoption of City modification and expansion goals development goals 
and objectives; direct the preparation of and administer the department budget; serve as 
technical and professional advisor and provide staff support to City Council and the 
Planning Commission on matters related to planning, zoning and subdivisions 
engineering, and building division functions; direct the preparation of Planning 
Commission and City Council agendas and ensure that minutes are taken and 
transcribed; monitor enforcement of planning, engineering, building, and other related 
regulations for new construction, reconstruction, and structural modifications; originate 
and recommend to the Planning Commission and City Council planning and zoning 
regulations and subsequent revisions; recommends action on requests for variances, 
conditional use permits, zone changes and other special requests; monitors compliance 
with zoning and subdivision ordinances actions related to development activity; maintain  
 

60

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 
 

official maps, records, and files related to community development; administer service 
contracts associated with assigned areas of responsibility; supervise, train, and evaluate 
personnel; meet and confer with groups and organizations concerning planning and 
redevelopment services; administer contracts with planning and engineering related 
consultants; meet with property owners to explain ordinances and regulations; 
establishes guidelines for Site Plan Review use oversee the production of community 
development guidelines; communicate with the City Attorney in the resolution of 
problems; represent the department and/or City with regional agencies and in various 
community functions; review and make recommendations for Community Investment 
Projects; develop and explain policies, procedures, and objectives of the unit to staff by 
written directive and by oral communications; conduct staff meetings; develop staff 
development programs; instruct assigned staff in work methods; conduct studies and 
investigations, prepare reports of findings and recommendations; and perform related 
work as required. 
 
LICENSE REQUIRED 

 Possession of a valid appropriate California Driver's License and a good driving 
record. 

 
TRAINING EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 
Education: 

 Graduation from an accredited four-year college or university with major work in 
and possession of a Bachelor Degree in Engineering, Planning, Public 
Administration, Urban Geography, or a closely related field.  A master's degree in 
one of the above fields is desired. 

 
Education Desirable: 

 A Master's Degree in Engineering, Planning, Public Administration, Urban 
Geography, or a closely related field. 
 

AND 
 

Experience: 

 Five (5) years of increasingly responsible professional and administrative 
experience working in an Engineering or a Planning Department for a municipality 
or county government, including with at least three (3) years in a supervisory 
experience capacity in a municipal or county government. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS 
Knowledge of: 

 Principles and practices of planning and zoning government administration; 

 Regulations affecting building, planning, development, and zoning; 

 Budget preparation and control; 

 Principles of economics, statistics, and sociology; 

 Grant-in-aid programs as they relate to planning, redevelopment, and housing; 

 Programs, funding sources, and mandates of assigned area of specialization; 

61

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 
 

 Organizational principles and practices as applied to Planning and Development 
within a municipal government; 

 Basic Principles of supervision, training, and performance evaluation; 

 Effective leadership methods; 

 Technical, legal, financial, and public relations problems involved in the conduct 
of Planning and Development Services programs; 

 Principles and techniques needed to organize and manage various programs 
and research methods; 

 Applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, ordinances, and policies; 

 Appropriate safety precautions and procedures. 
 
 
Ability to: 

 Plan, organize, and manage assigned departmental operations; 

 Monitor the systematic compilation of technical and statistical information; 

 Develop budget estimates and administer department budget; 

 Communicate effectively in writing and orally clearly and concisely, orally and in 
writing; 

 Read, understand, and apply highly complex materials; 

 Supervise, plan, schedule, make work assignments, set priorities, train, evaluate, 
and select subordinates; 

 Formulate and carry out city and department policy; 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 
course of work subordinates, public groups and organizations, City officials, and 
private and governmental agencies. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 

 Good color perception; 

 Incumbent is required to attend frequent evening meetings; 

 Incumbent is required to travel within and out of the city to attend meetings; 

 The work is primarily sedentary; 

 The position is designated as confidential under the Meyers-Millas Brown Act 
and is an exempt employee under the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 
 

 
                 
 
 
  

 

62

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services Department 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval – Res. 20-___, 
Amending the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District (FMFCD) 
Schedule of Drainage Costs and Fees for 2020-2021. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 20-___  
2. FMFCD Fee Adoption Letter 

  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve Res. 20-___, amending the FMFCD Storm Drainage per-
acre costs and fees for 2020-2021. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In 1961, the Cities of Fresno and Clovis and the County of Fresno adopted, as an element 
of the Fresno-Clovis Metropolitan Area General Plan, a Storm Drainage Master Plan 
prepared by the Flood Control District for the metropolitan area.  In 1969, these agencies 
adopted virtually identical drainage fee ordinances to provide for the funding of planned 
drainage facilities concurrently with development activity which created the need for such 
facilities. 
 
The local drainage plan shows the drainage area boundaries.  Also shown are proposed and 
existing master plan facilities in each watershed area. 
 
The rate structure associated with each master plan drainage area is based on the total cost 
of the urban drainage system including land, improvements and any engineering required to 

63

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



serve the subject area.  The cost of the proposed facilities is estimated.  As the facilities are 
constructed the estimated costs will be replaced by the actual costs.  The total cost is divided 
into the total land area using appropriate proportionate ratios (related to storm runoff 
characteristics) between the various contributing/benefiting land uses. 
  
This year’s update includes fee adjustments in certain drainage areas, zones and surcharges 
within the City of Clovis (BT, BU, BY2, CL, CZ, DO, DP, DQ, 7D, 7H, Zone 2 and surcharge 
fees for DN and DO) due to unit cost updates. 
 
The drainage fees paid pursuant to the ordinance are deposited into a separate trust account.  
The monies are not commingled with District general funds, are not used to fund any 
administration, operations or maintenance costs, and must be expended within the drainage 
area in which they are paid.   
 
The fee ordinance, enacted under the authority of the State Subdivision Map Act, requires 
the identification of the estimated or actual cost of the planned facilities through the adoption 
of a resolution.  Because the fees are based on the cost of facilities, the resolution serves 
also as the schedule of fees.  
 
The Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District consists of three zones.  Zone 3 is generally 
comprised of the core area of the City of Clovis.  Zone 2 is mostly in the City of Fresno, 
except for some portions of Drainage Areas “Q” and “S”, which are predominately within 
Clovis.  Zone 1 includes all of the areas within the District’s jurisdiction that are not in Zone 
2 or Zone 3. 
 
Exhibit “A” lists the proposed drainage fee adjustments.  City staff has had the opportunity 
to review the proposed adjustments with FMFCD staff and believes the adjustments are 
supported by the recently completed cost studies.  District staff has indicated that the District 
contacted the Building Industry Association in reviewing the proposed drainage fee update. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
In accordance with the District’s drainage fee ordinance, the District’s fee schedule is to be 
adjusted annually, or as warranted. This year the update was based upon examination of all 
drainage systems and their related costs and fee schedules. 

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
Adopt and implement the 2020-2021 FMFCD Drainage Fees for local drainage fees. 
 
Prepared by: Gene G. Abella, Engineer II 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

64

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING 
THE STORM DRAINAGE AND FLOOD CONTROL MASTER PLAN AND ADOPTING THE 
DRAINAGE FEES AND COSTS FOR ALL DEVELOPMENTS WITHIN THE JOINT AREA 
OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA ANDTHE FRESNO METROPOLITAN FLOOD 

CONTROL DISTRICT (2020-2021) 
 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Clovis has enacted Chapter 7, Title 8 of the 
Clovis Municipal Code, which ordinance is hereby incorporated herein by this reference, 
creating and establishing the authority for imposing and charging fees for the construction of 
planned local storm drainage facilities; and 

WHEREAS, an amended Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan Map 
(Exhibit “A” hereto) specifying public facilities and improvements, existing and proposed, 
which are necessary to provide drainage service and flood control within the respective 
local drainage areas specified therein has been presented to the Council of the City of 
Clovis; and 

 
WHEREAS, a study has been conducted of the impacts of contemplated future 

development on the existing storm drainage services and facilities in the local drainage areas 
of the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District (“District”) and the City of Clovis (“City”) listed 
in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, along with an analysis of new, improved or expanded public 
facilities, the estimated costs of those improvements, and the schedule of per gross acre fees 
calculated to raise the sum of money necessary to pay the estimated total cost of said local 
drainage in said local drainage areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, this study was available at the District's office for public inspection and 

review ten (10) days prior to this public meeting and notice was given in compliance with the 
requirements therefore, and 

 
WHEREAS, a public meeting was held pursuant to the public notice cited herein at a 

regularly scheduled meeting of the Council of the City of Clovis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Clovis finds as follows: 
A.  The purpose of said fees is to finance facilities within the City and District required 

for the removal of surface and storm waters attributable to development; to obviate the menace 
to the public health, safety and welfare arising from inadequate provision for removal of surface 
and storm waters occurring as the result of development of property; to prevent deterioration 
of property values and impairment of conditions making for desirable residential, commercial 
or industrial development, as the case may be, which would result from the failure to construct 
planned local drainage facilities relative to development of property; and to prevent 
deterioration of public streets and other public facilities which would result from failure to 
construct planned local drainage facilities concurrently with development. 
 B.  The fees adopted hereby and collected pursuant to Chapter 7, Title 8 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code and this Resolution are to be used to finance only the public facilities shown 

Attachment 1 65

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 

on Exhibit “A” hereto within each of the respective local drainage areas identified in Exhibit “B” 
hereto; 
 C.  After considering said Map and said study and analysis prepared by the District, 
entitled “Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan”, and that prepared by the City 
Planning Department entitled “Clovis General Plan,” and the various community and specific 
plans of the City; and the information and testimony received at this public hearing, the Council 
of the City of Clovis approves said Map and said study, and incorporates such herein.  The 
Council further finds that all development in the subject area will generate the need, as 
described in this recital, for storm drainage facilities therein, and generates an unmet need for 
storm drainage facilities and services within the impacted area; 
 D.  There is a need in this described impact area for storm drainage facilities which have 
not been constructed or have been constructed; said facilities have been called for in, or are 
consistent with, the City’s General Plan.  Development will contribute its fair share towards 
these facility costs in those local drainage areas listed in Exhibit “B” through payment of the 
respective drainage fees set forth therein; 
 E.  The facts and evidence presented establish that there is a reasonable relationship 
between the need for the described public facilities and the impacts of the types of development 
as described in Exhibit “A” and “B” for which the corresponding fee set forth in Exhibit “B” is 
charged.  There is a reasonable relationship between the use of said fee and the development 
of the lands in the service area for which the fee is charged, as these reasonable relationships 
or nexuses are described in more detail in the study and Map referred to above; 

F.  The Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan Map attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and the storm drainage fees set forth in Exhibit “B”, as adopted by Paragraphs 
2 and 3 herein below, revise the Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan, are in 
conformity with the City’s General Plan and are in compliance with Section 66483 of the 
California Government Code. 
 G.  The cost estimates set forth in Exhibit “B” are reasonable cost estimates for 
constructing these facilities and the fee schedule set forth therein is based on said estimates 
and is to generate fees from development which will not exceed the total of these costs. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis finds: 

 

1.  The above recitals are true and correct, and this Council so finds and determines. 
2. The Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan is hereby amended to include 

that Storm Drain and Flood Control Master Plan Map attached hereto as Exhibit “A” as 
supported by Exhibit “B”. 

3.  The schedule of drainage fees for those respective local drainage areas listed in 
Exhibit “B” hereto is hereby adopted as set forth in said Exhibit “B”.  The District shall 
prepare, and provide to the City, a 2020-2021 schedule of drainage fees for each of its 
local drainage areas, which shall include the fees adopted hereby.  Fees shall be paid in 
accordance with the Drainage Fee Ordinances according to said 2020-2021 drainage fee 
schedule. 

4.  The fee shall be solely used to pay: (a) costs related to the design, administration 
and construction of the described public storm water facilities; (b) for reimbursing the 
District for the development's fair share of those costs incurred by the District in the design 
and construction of the described public storm water facilities; or (c) to reimburse other 

66

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 

developers who have constructed public facilities in each service area where those 
facilities were beyond that needed to mitigate the impacts of the other developers' project 
or projects and where reimbursement is provided for in the applicable Drainage Fee 
Ordinance or under a UGM Ordinance. 
 5.  The District, pursuant to Chapter 7 of Title 8 of the Municipal Code, shall review the 
estimated cost of the described capital improvements for which this fee is charged, the 
continued or expanded need therefore, and the reasonable relationship between such facility 
needs and the varying types and development.  The Manager shall report the findings to the 
City Council and recommend any adjustment to this fee or other action as may be needed. 

6.  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 66022, any judicial action or 
proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void or annul this Resolution shall be brought within 
120 days of the effective date hereof, which shall be 60 days after the date of adoption 
hereof.  Administrative appeal is a mandatory prerequisite to any such judicial action or 
proceeding.  Such appeal shall be made in writing to the Director of Public Works of the 
City of Clovis.  Such appeal must be made within 60 days after the effective date hereof.  
The Director shall set the matter for hearing, conduct the hearing and render a decision 
within 40 days after such appeal is filed. 

7.  The Ordinance of the City of Clovis has an administrative mechanism whereby 
a property owner who seeks to develop property within the boundaries of the City of Clovis 
and the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District can challenge the fees imposed 
thereunder only by first paying said fees under protest.  Developers of property within the 
City of Clovis and the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District shall adhere to the 
applicable ordinance of the City of Clovis under which it is required that drainage fees must 
be paid before development is allowed, and that such fee may be paid under protest. 

 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on _________, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 

67

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



68

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



69

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



70

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



71

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



72

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



73

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



74

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



75

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



76

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



77

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



78

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



79

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



80

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



81

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



82

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



83

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



84

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



85

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



86

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



87

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



88

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



89

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



90

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



91

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



92

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



93

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



94

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



95

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



96

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



97

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



98

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



99

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



100

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



101

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



102

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



103

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



104

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



105

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



106

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



107

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



108

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



109

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



110

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



111

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



112

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



113

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



ATTACHMENT 2

114

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



115

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval – Res. 20-___, 
Authorize the City Engineer to enter into an agreement with Yamabe 
and Horn for professional services.  Amend the 2019-2020 
Community Investment Program Budget for the Sewer Developer 
Account. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 20-___ 
2. Consultant Service Agreement 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. For the City Council to authorize the City Engineer to enter into an agreement with 

Yamabe and Horn for professional services. 
2. For the City Council to approve a resolution amending the 2019-2020 Community 

Investment Program (CIP) and budget for the agreement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff is requesting approval to enter into a contract with Yamabe and Horn Engineering in 
the amount of $125,000 to provide design services for investigative work and a utility 
alignment study and design as an implementation step for the utility master plans.  The study 
and design is a prudent step in the implementation of the utility master plans.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The Master Plans for Sewer, Water, and Recycled Water identify several key facilities within 
Shepherd Avenue between Willow and DeWolf Avenues.  In addition, there are storm drain, 
gas, communications, and other facilities existing or proposed in the corridor which will make 
this corridor, in particular, more congested with underground utilities than the norm.  For the 
existing facilities, locations are known to vary along the corridor, making it difficult to 
impossible to plan for consistent pipeline alignments.  In order to provide for appropriate 

116

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



alignments and accommodate all utilities, it is good practice and is also cost effective to do 
investigative work and provide a design considering all elements in advance of development 
so that alignments are consistent and coordinated.  With Lennar Homes currently doing work 
associated with their Tract 6200 on Shepherd between Clovis and Sunnyside, there is an 
immediate need to do the advance investigative work.  Staff is proposing to utilize Lennar’s 
project engineer, Yamabe and Horn, who has a head start on the Clovis to Sunnyside 
segment and needs the overall alignment scheme to complete their design.  Attachment 2 is 
an agreement that includes the proposed scope of professional services.  Staff requests 
Council to authorize the City Engineer to enter into the agreement with Yamabe and Horn for 
these services in order to accommodate their timeline and because the amount exceeds the 
limits of staff approval. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total contract for this work is $125,000 and will require an amendment to the CIP budget.  
The revenue will be transferred from the General Plan Update Consultant Account to the 
Sewer Capital Projects - Developer Account in order to fund the services. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The agreement with Yamabe and Horn will provide a cost effective and timely design of key 
facilities within the Shepherd Avenue corridor. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
1. The City Engineer will execute the agreement. 
2. Funds will be appropriated and accounted for in the City of Clovis 2019-2020 Budget 

as specified in the attached budget amendment. 
 
Prepared by: Sean K. Smith, Supervising Civil Engineer 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

117

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 20-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR  

FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the 2019-2020 Budget on June 10, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the expenditure of funds for the 2019-2020 

Community Investment Program – Sewer Developer Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the additional expenditures needed were not included in the 2019-2020 

Community Investment Program – Sewer Developer Fund.  

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis City Council approves 

the budget amendment as shown in the “Summary of Expenditures by Fund”, “Summary of 

Revenues by Fund” attached as Attachment A: 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on February 3, 2020 by the following vote, to wit. 

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ATTACHMENT 1 

118

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 
 Fund 
   
  Sewer Capital Projects - Developer $125,000.00 
   
     
  Total $125,000.00 

   

 

 

 
SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY FUND 

 
  Fund 
 
  Sewer Capital Projects - Developer $125,000.00 
   
   
  Total $125,000.00 
  
 

119

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



ATTACHMENT 2 120

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



121

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



122

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



123

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



124

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



125

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



126

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



127

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



128

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



129

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



130

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



131

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



132

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



133

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



134

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



135

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Community and Economic Development Department 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: Receive and File – The City of Clovis Old Town Parking Study (2019). 

Staff: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
Recommendation: Receive and File  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Clovis Old Town Parking Study (2019)  
2. Study Area Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to receive and file the Old Town Clovis Parking Study (2019). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Old Town Parking Study (“Study” – Attachment 1) was commissioned to document 
existing parking utilization and proposed parking management strategies to achieve the 
City’s overarching goals and visions of Old Town.  The study area encompassed the Parking 
and Business Improvement Area (PBIA), with additions including public and private parking 
facilities just east of Clovis Avenue (see Attachment 2).  The study found that parking in the 
study area is sufficient to meet demand as the parking utilization does not reach capacity at 
any time including peak demand times. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Clovis Old Town is home to many businesses, events, and tourist attractions.  The 
availability of parking is a concern central to the continued success of these venues.  As 
visitors come to Old Town it is critical that there be readily available parking next to, or within 
walking distance to, the business or event they are attending to encourage future repeat 
patronage of the venue. 
 

136

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



To ensure patrons of Old Town were being provided suitable parking opportunities, staff 
decided to commission an independent study into the matter.  Thus, staff contracted with 
TJKM Transportation Consultants, to research, analyze and prepare a report in regards to 
parking in Old Town. 
 
Analysis 
TJKM analyzed the current uses within the study area (i.e. businesses, residences, venues, 
etc.), along with review of available plans (including the General Plan and the Old Town 
Parking Study from 2006).  TJKM also performed an on-site parking occupancy survey of 
on-street parking, off-street public and private parking facilities usage. Finally, TJKM 
developed an online public survey to obtain public feedback on parking matters in Old Town 
from June 17, 2019 to June 27, 2019, which received 114 unique responses. 
 
Findings 
The on-site parking study found that, during peak usage times (11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.), the 
maximum parking occupancy in the overall study area was 63 percent. This usage rate 
translates into approximately 800 parking spaces remaining unused during the peak period.  
 
The study found an imbalance in parking utilization where parking close to businesses saw 
higher usage than parking spaces along the periphery of the study area.  Most on-street 
parking and public parking lots reached 85 percent at different times of the day (peak times), 
except for the Water Tower Parking Lot, the Veterans Memorial District Parking Lots, and 
the City Hall lots. The study also found that all the available parking during busy hours was 
within a walking distance of 0.25 miles, indicating that there are a sufficient number of 
parking spaces in close proximity.   
 
The public survey was used to inquire about general impressions about Old Town, as well 
as parking feedback.  There were 114 unique survey responses submitted.  Fifty percent of 
these stated that they didn’t have a “least favorite thing about Old Town”.  Sixteen percent 
of these identified parking as an issue, which indicates a perceived issue related to parking 
in Old Town. 
 
Consultant Recommendation 
Given the results of the analysis and review of the findings, the consultant recommends the 
development and implementation of a well-defined parking management program that can 
help balance the use of the existing parking facilities.   
 
The Consultant provides the following specific recommendations: 

 
1. Implementation of an employee permit parking program for Old Town area 

employees – to increase the amount of available prime parking locations during 
peak demand. 

2. Initiation of a pilot smart meter and performance based pricing program (including 
paying parking via smartphone) – to assist in parking turnover and occupancy, 
and encourage parking lot usage. 

137

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



3. Installation of additional wayfinding signs, branding and advertising for parking 
areas – to better direct visitors to available parking lots. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
After further review of the recommendations provided by the consultant, staff believes that 
the most sensible program is to immediately implement a more robust Wayfinding Sign 
Branding and Advertising Program for parking in the survey area.  Additionally, due to 
potential new infill development in the study area, it is critical that currently available parking 
not be removed from service. 
 
While the other two recommendations (employee permitting and meter changes) are 
valuable recommendations, staff has found that given the historic use of Old Town, and the 
patron’s expectations for parking in the study area, those programs may not necessarily be 
needed, nor readily accepted in the area.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no fiscal impact associated with receipt and filing of the study. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council receive and file the Clovis Old Town Parking Study (2019) 
prepared by TJKM Transportation Consultants. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING RECEIVE AND FILE 
Staff will develop a Wayfinding Sign Branding and Advertising Program for parking in the 
study area, along with funding recommendations for the implementation of the Program. 
 
Prepared by: Shawn Miller, Business Development Manager 
   Claudia Cazares, Management Analyst 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

138

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



City of Clovis 
OLD TOWN 

PARKING STUDY
November 27, 2019

Final Draft
Attachment 1

139

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

City of Clovis 
OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY
Date: November 27, 2019

Prepared for: City of Clovis

Prepared by: TJKM Transportation Consultants

140

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



i

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1 INTRODUCTION  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1

1.1 Planning Elements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

1.2 Study Area . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

1.3 Summary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

2 EXISTING PARKING UTILIZATION  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .3

2.1 Data Collection . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

2.2 Parking Supply . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

2.3 Parking Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

2.4 Additional Data Analysis  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

2.5 Summary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

3 STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .19

3.1 Online Public Survey . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20

4  PARKING POLICY PROPOSAL AND MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .21

4.1 Employee Parking . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

4.2 Pilot Smart Meter and Performance-Based Pricing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24

4.3 Wayfinding Sign Branding and Advertising  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27

5 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .31

APPENDICES  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .33

141

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



ii

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

LIST OF FIGURES
Figure 1. Parking Supply . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Figure 2. Parking Restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Figure 3. Old Town Parking Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Figure 4. Parking Occupancy at 11 a.m. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

Figure 5. Parking Occupancy at 12 noon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11

Figure 6. Parking Occupancy at 1 p.m. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

Figure 7. On-Street Parking Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13

Figure 8. Off-Street Parking Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13

Figure 9. Public Parking Lot Parking Occupancy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

Figure 10. Private Parking Lot Parking Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

LIST OF TABLES
Table 1. Old Town Parking Supply Inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

Table 2. Parking Supply by Parking Restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Table 3. Overall Parking Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Table 4. Employee Parking Permit Allotment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Table 5. Proposed Dynamic Parking Rate Structure  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24

Table 6. Implementation Action Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

142

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



iii

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 11. On-Street Parking Occupancy on Fourth St.  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

Figure 12. Additional Parking Spaces . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17

Figure 13. Survey Results  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20

Figure 14. Proposed Employee Parking Locations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25

Figure 15. Proposed Smart Meter Locations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26

Figure 16. Existing and Proposed Wayfinding Sign Locations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29

143

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

iv 144

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



1 INTRODUCTION

145

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

2

he City of Clovis Old Town Parking Study (Parking Study) 
documents existing parking utilization and proposed parking 
management strategies to achieve its overarching goals and 

visions of the Old Town. The Parking Study serves as a blueprint 
that summarizes parking management programs, various policy 
proposals, tools and strategic solutions that will guide decisions on 
Old Town parking. The Parking Study summarizes the data collection, 
analysis, findings, stakeholder input, and recommendations. The 
Parking Study is developed to be consistent with the Central Clovis 
Specific Plan 2016.

1.1 PLANNING ELEMENTS
The Parking Study coordinates 
with the Central Clovis Specific 
Plan 2016. The Parking and 
Business Improvement Area 
(PBIA) was established in 1975 
to waive off-street parking 
requirements for individual 
businesses. Currently, the 
provision of parking spaces relies 
on existing on-street curb parking, existing private rear parking lots, 
and heavily on public parking lots.

1.2 STUDY AREA
The study area is essentially the PBIA area with the addition of public 
and private parking facilities east of Clovis Avenue. The study area 

is generally bordered by Woodworth Avenue to the west, Music 
Avenue to the east, Third Avenue to the north, and Seventh Avenue 
to the south. 

1.3 SUMMARY
There are about 2,164 parking spaces – both on-street and off-street 
parking combined, in the study area. The findings suggest that the 
study area reaches a maximum of 63 percent occupancy during 
peak hours with about 800-850 spaces open for parking. The off-
street parking lots are observed to reach a maximum of 65 percent 
during peak hours, with about 480-500 spaces open for parking. 
Of the available off-street parking spaces, about 72 percent are in 
public parking lots and the rest are in private parking lots. On-street 
parking is observed to reach a maximum of 60 percent occupancy 
during peak hours, leaving about 300 spaces available.

T

146

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



2 EXISTING PARKING 
UTILIZATION

147

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



4

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

his chapter describes the parking data collection and 
existing parking utilization in the study area. The existing 
parking analysis was conducted for parking supply, parking 

restrictions and hourly parking occupancy.

2.1 DATA COLLECTION
In consultation with City staff, a data collection area was finalized to 
include on-street parking, public parking lots, and selected private 
parking lots with the following data categories:

Parking Inventory. The number of parking spaces available in the 
study area was collected for on-street and off-street parking spaces 
(public and private parking lots). Time restrictions, handicap spaces 
and other regulations were classified. 

Parking Occupancy. Hourly parking occupancy counts were 
collected from 6 a.m. to 9 p.m. on May 1, 2019, for on-street block 
faces and off-street public and private parking facilities. 

Figure 1 illustrates locations and supply of parking spaces for on-
street block faces and off-street lots. Detailed parking data sheets 
with supply are provided in Appendix A. 

T

148

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



5

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 1. Parking Supply

179

81

156

126

67

64

69

61

63

28

55

23

8

31

20

26

14

13

15

6

9

5

12

10

11

32

22
6

28

19

7

8

9

14

17

1011

12

16

13

20
15 18 24

3

8

7

13

9 13

10

8

17

13

28

12

12

17

8

17

19

12

8

10

22

19

9
19

17 19

10

12

19

9

10

9

14

11

19

11

12

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

V
IS

 A
VE

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
V

E

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EIGHTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
S

M
U

N
 A

VE

SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

H
AR

VA
R

D
 A

VE

FIRST ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
P

KW
Y

AL
Y

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

BULLARD AVE

RODEO DR

THIRD ST

 FOURTH ST

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

EL
M

 A
VE

AL
Y

SECOND ST

AL
Y

 

SECOND ST

FIRST ST

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

 

FIRST ST

Parking Supply
Figure XX

On-Street and Off-Street 
Parking Supply

Private Parking 

Public Parking 

81

15

11

8

6
10

5

6

8

20

20

4

7 2 23

3

149

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



6

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

2.2 PARKING SUPPLY
For analysis purpose, parking facilities in the study area are 
organized into on-street and off-street. Off-street parking facilities 
consists of private and public lots. There are a total of 2,164 parking 
spaces in the study area, of which 783 are on-street spaces and 
1,381 are off-street spaces. Of the 1,381 off-street parking spaces, 
1,079 (78 percent) spaces are public parking spaces and the 
remaining 302 (22 percent) spaces are privately owned. Table 1 lists 
the number of on-street and off-street parking spaces:

Of the total number (2,164) of parking spaces, 70 percent (1,510 
spaces) are unrestricted spaces. About 7 percent (145) spaces are 
located in loading zone, private reserved or motorcycle parking 
zone, majority of which are private reserved parking spots. About 16 
percent (344 spaces) of the total parking spaces are 3 hour parking 
spaces. Handicap spaces, 24 minute parking spaces and 2 hour 
parking spaces constitute about 8 percent (165 spaces) of the total 
parking supply in Old Town Clovis. 

About 62 percent (483 parking spaces) of on-street parking spaces 
are unrestricted parking spaces and 29 percent (225 parking spaces) 
are restricted to 3 hour parking. 

Facility Type Number of Spaces %

On-Street 783 36%

Off-Street Public 1,079 50%

Off-Street Private 302 14%

TOTAL 2,164 100%

Table 1. Old Town Parking Supply Inventory

About 78 percent (1,079 parking spaces) designated off-street 
parking are public parking lots. The remaining 22 percent of the off-
street parking lots (302 parking spaces) are private parking lots.  

About 68 percent (736 spaces) of the public parking lot spaces are 
unrestricted spaces. About 96 percent (291 parking spaces) of the 
off-street private parking spaces are private reserved parking spaces. 
The remaining are handicap parking spaces. 

Table 2 lists the parking supply along with parking restrictions.

Figure 2 illustrates the parking restrictions for on-street block faces 
and off-street parking lots in the study area.

150

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



7

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Table 2. Parking Supply by Parking Restrictions

Unrestricted Handicap 24 Minute 
Parking 2 Hour Parking 3 Hour 

Parking
Other (Loading Zone, Private 

Reserved, etc.) Total

On-Street
483 10 2 59 225 4 783
62% 1% <1% 8% 29% 1% 100%

Off-Street 
(Public)

736 63 2 18 119 141 1,079

68% 6% 0% 2% 11% 13% 100%

Off-street 
(Private)

291 11 0 0 0 0 302

96% 4% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Total 
1,510 84 4 77 344 145 2,164

70% 4% 0% 4% 16% 7% 100%

151

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



8

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 2. Parking Restrictions

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

CL
O

VI
S 

AV
E

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

DE
 W

IT
T 

AV
E

W
O

O
DW

O
RT

H 
AV

E

EIGHTH ST

BULLARD AVE

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
RO

N 
AV

E

O
SM

UN
 A

VE

SEVENTH ST

CO
LE

 A
VE

FIRST ST

VE
TE

RA
NS

 P
KW

Y

RU
SS

EL
L 

AV
E

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

RODEO DR

M
US

IC
 A

VE

SECOND ST

CO
LE

 A
VE

DE
 W

IT
T 

AV
E

EL
M

 A
VE

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

RU
SS

EL
L 

AV
E

SECOND ST

Parking Restrictions 
Figure XX

Legend

2-hour

24-minute 

Loading Zone 

# of spaces - Handicap

3-hour 

Unrestricted 

Private 

7

3 10

13

XX-

3

6
4 2

2

2

2

6
4

2

For detailed parking restrictions, please refer to Parking Supply Data Sheets in Attachment X. 

152

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



9

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

2.3 PARKING OCCUPANCY
This section describes how parking was utilized hourly for on-street 
and off-street parking in the study area during the day of data 
collection. A parking occupancy of 85 percent is typically defined 
as the practical threshold that indicates a healthy and balanced 
parking usage between supply and demand. Any proposed parking 
strategies set forth in the Parking Study is aimed at maintaining a 
occupancy of 85 percent at a block-face or lot level. In this analysis, 
parking occupancy below 85 percent is considered underutilized 
whereas an occupancy greater than 85 percent is considered 
overutilized. The section begins with analyzing trends of overall 
parking occupancy in the study area. Trends of both off-street 
and on-street parking occupancy are analyzed. This is followed 
by observing occupancy trends of public parking lots and private 
parking lot in the study area. Parking data sheets with occupancy are 
provided in Appendix B. Maps with hourly parking occupancy are 
provided in Appendix C.

2.3.1 OLD TOWN PARKING OCCUPANCY 
The overall trends of parking usage in the study area represents the 
Old Town parking usage by businesses, customers, and other users. 
This includes all on-street and off-street parking facilities. The peak 
period of parking occupancy is observed to be between 11 a.m. to 1 
p.m. with a maximum occupancy of 63 percent. This leaves for about 
800 parking spaces open during this peak period. Figure 3 illustrates 
the parking occupancy trend for the entire study area from 6 a.m. to 
9 p.m. Figure 4, Figure 5 and Figure 6 illustrate parking occupancy 
during peak hours.

Figure 3. Old Town Parking Occupancy

6%
11%

30%

49%

59% 61% 63% 61% 61%
57% 54%

51%
47%

44%

33%

17%

85%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

6
a.m.

7
a.m.

8
a.m.

9
a.m.

10
a.m.

11
a.m.

12
noon

1
p.m.

2
p.m.

3
p.m.

4
p.m.

5
p.m.

6
p.m.

7
p.m.

8
p.m.

9
p.m.

Peak Period % Occupancy

153

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



10

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 4. Parking Occupancy at 11 a.m.

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

V
IS

 A
VE

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
V

E

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EIGHTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
S

M
U

N
 A

VE
SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

H
AR

VA
R

D
 A

VE

FIRST ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
P

KW
Y

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

BULLARD AVE

RODEO DR

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

SECOND ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

AL
Y

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

FIRST ST

FOURTH ST

FIRST ST

SECOND ST

Parking Occupancy
0 - 50%

50 - 75%

75 - 85%

85 - 95%

95 - 100%

Parking Occupancy at 11 A.M.
Figure XX

154

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



11

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 5. Parking Occupancy at 12 noon

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

V
IS

 A
VE

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
V

E

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EIGHTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
S

M
U

N
 A

VE

SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

H
AR

VA
R

D
 A

VE
FIRST ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
P

KW
Y

AL
Y

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

BULLARD AVE

RODEO DR

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

FIFTH ST

SECOND ST

FIRST ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

FOURTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

THIRD ST

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

FIRST ST

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

SECOND ST

Parking Occupancy
0 - 50%

50 - 75%

75 - 85%

85 - 95%

95 - 100%

Parking Occupancy at 12 Noon
Figure XX

155

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



12

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 6. Parking Occupancy at 1 p.m.

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

V
IS

 A
VE

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
V

E

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EIGHTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
S

M
U

N
 A

VE
SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

H
AR

VA
R

D
 A

VE

FIRST ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
P

KW
Y

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

BULLARD AVE

RODEO DR

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

SECOND ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

AL
Y

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

FIRST ST

FOURTH ST

FIRST ST

SECOND ST

Parking Occupancy
0 - 50%

50 - 75%

75 - 85%

85 - 95%

95 - 100%

Parking Occupancy at 1 P.M.
Figure XX

156

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



13

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

2.3.2 ON–STREET PARKING OCCUPANCY 
During the survey period, parking occupancy for on-street parking 
fluctuated from a low of 7 percent to a high of 60 percent. The 
maximum occupancy of 60 percent was observed between 12 noon 
to 2 p.m., leaving approximately 300 spaces open. During peak 
hours, on-street parking can be found along Woodworth Avenue, 
Veterans Parkway, Third Street, Fourth Street and Fifth Street. 

Figure 7 illustrates the observed trend of on-street parking 
occupancy and highlights the peak period. 

Figure 7. On-Street Parking Occupancy

2.3.3 OFF-STREET PARKING OCCUPANCY 
For both public and private parking lots, parking occupancy 
fluctuated from a low of 6 percent to a high of 65 percent. The 
maximum occupancy of 65 percent was observed between 10 a.m. 
to 12 noon, leaving approximately 500 spaces open. These open 
spaces can be found on public parking lots along Fifth Street and 
Third Street as well as private parking lots between Third Street and 
Fourth Street.

Figure 8 illustrates the observed trend of parking occupancy for off-
street parking and highlights the peak period. 

Figure 8. Off-Street Parking Occupancy

7%
12%

25%

43%

51%
55%

60% 60% 60%

50% 49% 50% 50%
46%

31%

16%

85%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

6
a.m.

7
a.m.

8
a.m.

9
a.m.

10
a.m.

11
a.m.

12
noon

1
p.m.

2
p.m.

3
p.m.

4
p.m.

5
p.m.

6
p.m.

7
p.m.

8
p.m.

9
p.m.

Peak Hour
% Occupancy
% Threshold

6%
10%

32%

52%

63% 64% 65%
62% 61% 61%

57%
52%

46% 43%

34%

18%

85%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

6
a.m.

7
a.m.

8
a.m.

9
a.m.

10
a.m.

11
a.m.

12
noon

1
p.m.

2
p.m.

3
p.m.

4
p.m.

5
p.m.

6
p.m.

7
p.m.

8
p.m.

9
p.m.

Peak Hour
% Occupancy
% Threshold

157

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



14

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Public Parking Lots. For public parking lots, parking occupancy 
fluctuated from a low of 5 percent to a high of 68 percent. The 
maximum occupancy of 70 percent was observed between 11 a.m. 
to 1 p.m., leaving approximately 290 spaces open. 

Figure 9 illustrates the occupancy percent observed in the public 
parking lots and highlights the peak period of occupancy.

Figure 9. Public Parking Lot Parking Occupancy

Private Parking Lots. For private parking lots, parking occupancy 
fluctuated from a low of 9 percent to a high of 57 percent during 
peak hours. The maximum occupancy of 56 percent was observed 
between 10 a.m. to 12 noon, leaving approximately 200 spaces 
open. 

Figure 10 illustrates the occupancy trends observed for private 
parking lots and highlights the peak period of parking occupancy. 

Figure 10. Private Parking Lot Parking Occupancy

Table 3 summarizes the parking occupancy for the entire study 
area, on-street as well as off-street, throughout the day on May 1, 
2019. On-street parking occupancy between 12 noon to 2 p.m. was 
observed to reach a maximum of 60 percent with 40 percent spaces 
available. Parking lots which had 30 to 35 percent available parking 
in the study area during the same time period can be accessed. This 
indicates a typical parking imbalance in which center spots around 

85%

6%
10%

35%

56%

67% 68% 68%
65% 65% 65%

60%
54%

48% 46%

37%

19%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

6
a.m.

7
a.m.

8
a.m.

9
a.m.

10
a.m.

11
a.m.

12
noon

1
p.m.

2
p.m.

3
p.m.

4
p.m.

5
p.m.

6
p.m.

7
p.m.

8
p.m.

9
p.m.

Peak Hour
% Threshold
% Occupancy

85%

7% 9%

22%

38%

48%
51%

55%
50%

47% 46% 47%
44%

37%
33%

22%

12%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

6
a.m.

7
a.m.

8
a.m.

9
a.m.

10
a.m.

11
a.m.

12
noon

1
p.m.

2
p.m.

3
p.m.

4
p.m.

5
p.m.

6
p.m.

7
p.m.

8
p.m.

9
p.m.

Peak Hour
% Threshold
% Occupancy

158

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



15

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Clovis Avenue were occupied while parking spaces on the periphery 
along Third Street and Fourth Street were available. 

Table 3. Overall Parking Occupancy

6 
a.m.

7 
a.m.

8 
a.m.

9 
a.m. 10 a.m. 11 a.m. 12 

noon
1 

p.m.
2 

p.m.
3 

p.m.
4 

p.m.
5 

p.m.
6 

p.m.
7 

p.m.
8 

p.m.
9 

p.m.

On-street 
Parking 7% 12% 25% 43% 51% 55% 60% 60% 60% 50% 49% 50% 50% 46% 31% 16%

Off-street 
Parking – 

Public
6% 10% 35% 56% 67% 68% 68% 65% 65% 65% 60% 54% 48% 46% 37% 19%

Off-street 
Parking – 
Private 

7% 9% 22% 38% 48% 51% 55% 50% 47% 46% 47% 44% 37% 33% 22% 12%

Total 6% 11% 30% 49% 59% 61% 63% 61% 61% 57% 54% 51% 47% 44% 33% 17%

Note:
XX% indicate occupancy 60 - 69%

Note that all the available parking during busy hours was within 
a walking distance of 0.25 miles. This indicates that there are a 
sufficient number of parking spaces in close proximity. 

159

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



16

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

2.4 ADDITIONAL DATA ANALYSIS 
To verify existing parking conditions in Old Town Clovis, the project 
team revisited the site in September 2019 and took consideration 
of some additional parking facilities that might affect the overall 
parking occupancy. The additional data collection includes on-
street parking spaces along Fourth Street between Elm Avenue and 
Veterans Parkway, and the San Joaquin College of Law surface lot.

As a result, the number of on-street parking spaces along this 
segment was observed to be 61. Figure 11 illustrates the observed 
and projected occupancy in these block faces, all throughout the 
day. 

Figure 11. On-Street Parking Occupancy on Fourth St. 

4
7

16

21

31
34

36 36 36

18
21

8

30
28

19

10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

6
a.m.

7
a.m.

8
a.m.

9
a.m.

10
a.m.

11
a.m.

12
noon

1
p.m.

2
p.m.

3
p.m.

4
p.m.

5
p.m.

6
p.m.

7
p.m.

8
p.m.

9
p.m.

The San Joaquin College of Law parking lot provides 60 regular 
parking spaces and 2 handicap spaces, totaling 62 spaces. It is 
a privately operated lot, and the lot was observed to have low 
occupancy from morning to mid-day. The lot was observed to 
be more occupied late afternoon and evening. Approximately, 
35 parked vehicles were observed at around 4 p.m. The lot was 
observed to have high occupancy during evening hours, as night 
classes meet at the College. 

These additional parking spaces, for both on- and off-street facilities, 
and their occupancy levels do not change the overall results of the 
analysis or the recommendations in this report. In fact, it resulted in 
a lower average peak parking occupancy study area-wide.

Figure 12 shows the locations of the above mentioned additional 
parking facilities along with their supply.

160

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



17

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

179

81

156

126

67

64

69

61

63

28

55

23

8

31

20

26

14

13

15

6

9

5

12

10

11

32

22
6

28

19

7

8

9

14

17

1011

12

16

13
20

15 18 24

3

8

7

13

9 13

10

8

17

13

28

12

12

17

8

17

19

12

8

10

22

19

9
19

17 19

10

12

19

9

10

9

14

11

19

11

12

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

V
IS

 A
VE

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
V

E

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EIGHTH ST

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
S

M
U

N
 A

VE
SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

H
AR

VA
R

D
 A

VE

FIRST ST

R
U

SS
E

LL
 A

VE

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
P

KW
Y

AL
Y

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

BULLARD AVE

RODEO DR

THIRD ST

 FOURTH ST

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

C
O

LE
 A

V
E

EL
M

 A
VE

AL
Y

SECOND ST

AL
Y

 

SECOND ST

FIRST ST

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

 

FIRST ST

Parking Supply
Figure XX

On Street
 

and
 

Off-Street
 Parking

 
Supply

Private Parking 

Public Parking 

81

15

11

8

6
10

5

6

8

20

20

4

7 2 23

3

Additional Parking Spaces

61

XX

62

Figure 12. Additional Parking Spaces

161

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

18

2.5 SUMMARY
There are about 2,164 parking spaces in the study area. The count 
consists of all on-street parking, private parking lots, and public lots 
within the study area. Additional data for both on-street and off-
street parking facilities was collected, which adds about 123 spaces 
to the study area. The additional parking spaces were also analyzed, 
and the results suggest no changes to the overall parking occupancy 
for the study area.

The findings suggest that the study area reaches a maximum of 63 
percent occupancy during peak hours with about 800 spaces open. 
The off-street parking lots are observed to reach a maximum of 
65 percent during peak hours, with about 480 to 500 spaces open. 
Of the available off-street parking spaces, about 72 percent are in 
public parking lots and the rest are in private parking lots. On-street 
parking is observed to reach a maximum of 60 percent occupancy 
during peak hours, leaving about 300 spaces available. 

Most on-street parking and public parking lots reached 85 percent 
at different times of the day, except for the Water Tower Parking Lot, 
the Veterans Memorial District Parking Lots, and the City Hall Lot. 
Some of the on-street block faces were verified as the “prime spots” 
for storefront parking. These block faces are along Pollasky Avenue 
and Fifth Street. 

Though parking seems to be busy at certain locations of Old Town, 
underutilized spaces were observed with walking distance. Thus, 
the short-term needs for improving Old Town parking should be 
focused on well-defined parking management that can help balance 
the use of parking facilities.

162

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



3 STAKEHOLDER 
OUTREACH

163

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

20

3.1 ONLINE PUBLIC SURVEY

3.1.1 BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY
As part of this parking study, a survey was conducted to determine 
individual thoughts and feelings regarding parking. To avoid obvious 
response bias associated with issuing a “parking survey”, this survey 
contained questions related to overall general impressions about 
Old Town. This method is more likely to create organic responses 
related to parking in and around Old Town.

The survey was issued via Survey Monkey, an online survey 
development service company. The company provides free, 
customizable surveys, as well as a suite of paid back-end programs 
that include data analysis, sample selection, bias elimination, and 
data representation tools.

A link to this survey was offered on City of Clovis social media sites 
as well as social media sites belonging to the Business Organization 
of Old Town and Clovis Chamber of Commerce.

The open period for responses took place starting June 17, 2019 and 
ending June 27, 2019.

Following the close of the survey for input, staff collected the data 
and removed duplicate responses based on identical Internet 
Provider (IP) addresses.

3.1.2 INTERPRETATION OF DATA
There were 114 unique responses to this survey. Fifty percent of 
respondents either stated they didn't have a “least favorite thing 
about Old Town” or simply did not respond to this question. Sixteen 
percent of respondents cited parking to be an issue.

While sixteen percent is not a huge number, this does indicate a 
perceived issue related to parking in Old Town. 

See Appendix D for a complete list of survey questions.

Figure 13. Survey Results

164

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



4  PARKING 
POLICY 

PROPOSAL AND 
MANAGEMENT 

STRATEGIES

165

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



22

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

his chapter describes a parking policy analysis and 
management strategies proposed for the study area. The 
recommended policies and strategies are developed based 

on the following considerations: 

• Make efficient use of existing parking supply;

• Make Old Town parking desired for all users, including visitors, 
employees, and residents;

• Envision continuous growth in parking demand; and

• Explore innovative and technological parking management 
concepts.

The analysis and recommendations incorporate previous efforts 
including data findings and community input.

4.1 EMPLOYEE PARKING
In order to balance the parking needs for a diverse group of users, 
including merchants, business employees, customers, and residents, 
many jurisdictions have implemented various permit programs 
to allow permit holders to park regardless of time restrictions at 
designated locations. The following subsections detail the permit 
process and corresponding work needed to successfully implement 
such programs. 

The existing parking occupancy study has shown that some prime 
parking locations, such as Pollasky Avenue, experience 85 to 95 
percent occupancy during peak hours. However, there were many 
spaces available during the same period within a quarter-mile 
walking distance, including on-street parking and public parking 
lots. 

T 4.1.1 EMPLOYEE PERMIT PARKING PROGRAM 
(EPPP)
An Employee Permit Parking Program (EPPP) is designed to provide 
convenient parking for the employees working in Old Town, and to  
increase parking turnover of prime parking spaces. A permit holder 
will have the privilege to park their vehicles at designated spaces 
which are exempt from posted parking time limits. 

There are about 215 business units located within the Parking and 
Business Improvement Area (PBIA). Currently, 201 businesses are 
operating in these locations. These include 78 professional offices, 
49 retail stores, 25 restaurants/cafés/bars, 38 salons/spas/barbers, 
5 automobile services, 2 banks, 2 banquet halls and 2 gyms. Out 
of these 201 businesses, 78 of them own and provide appropriate 
on-site private parking. Thus, 123 businesses do not provide for 
employee parking and are serviced by public parking lots. Table 
4 provides a matrix of the approximate permit issuance needs, by 
business type: 

Business Type Per Business 
Allotment

Number of 
Business

Total 
Allotment

Professional Office 4 44 176

Retail 2 33 66

Restaurant/Cafe/Bar 4 19 76

Salon/Spa/Barber 2 25 50

Automobile Service 2 1 2

Banquet Hall 1 1 1

Total - 123 371

Table 4. Employee Parking Permit Allotment

166

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



23

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

As shown in Table 4, a total of 371 permits might be required 
to meet the parking demand generated by business owners and 
employees.

The City should conduct further studies to obtain the accurate 
allotment for each business in order to monitor the number 
employee parking spaces needed over time. This includes a survey 
of total number of employees for each business. 

A nominal fee should be applied to each permit to cover 
administrative costs. This fee is encouraged to be paid by the 
employers (business owners). 

Old Town Business Distribution.

4.1.2 EMPLOYEE PARKING DESIGNATION
It is anticipated that all permit holders will park their vehicles at 
designated parking spaces. Designated employee parking could 
be on-street spaces and/or stalls within public parking lots where 
underutilized.

Based on the existing parking usage, it is recommended that 
employee parking be assigned at the following locations: 

• Fourth Street between Woodworth Avenue and Pollasky Avenue

• Bullard Avenue between Woodworth Avenue and Pollasky 
Avenue

• Third Street between Clovis Avenue and Osmun Avenue

• Public Parking Lot on Woodworth Avenue between Fifth Street 
and Bullard Avenue (Parking Lot 3 as per the Central Clovis 
Specific Plan 2016)

167

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



24

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Time Day Parking Rate
Before 11 a.m. Monday through Friday Free

11 a.m. to 1 p.m. Monday through Friday $0.75 per hour

1 p.m. to 4 p.m. Monday through Friday $0.50 per hour

4 p.m. to 7 p.m. Monday through Friday $0.75 per hour

After 7 p.m. Monday through Friday Free

Table 5. Proposed Dynamic Parking Rate Structure 

• Water Tower Parking Lot 

• Public Parking Lot at the corner of Third Street and Veterans 
Parkway 

This totals 379 spaces for employee parking. Note that employee 
parking is not guaranteed with availability at any given time. Instead, 
vehicles are parked on a first come, first serve basis. However, permit 
holders are exempt from posted time limits. In addition, enforcing 
parking time limits is essential to ensure that parking is available 
for permit holders, as well as to discourage business employees 
from occupying prime parking spaces all day. Figure 14 shows the 
proposed employee parking locations. 

4.2 PILOT SMART METER 
AND PERFORMANCE-
BASED PRICING
Smart Meters are solar-powered and 
wirelessly networked, have backlit displays 
to communicate parking prices and rules, 
and accept payment by credit cards, debit 
cards, coins and smart phones.

The four-block area on Pollasky Avenue 
between 3rd and 7th Street represents 
the prime spots for shopping, dining, 
and beach activities, where a pilot Smart Meter program could 
bring some “ticket anxiety” for the visitors. Typically, for visitors to 
such destinations, among all troubling factors such as difficulty in 
finding a space and need to carry change, the parking fee is the 

least concerning aspect for most people. Implementing pricing 
adjustments to core area and removing time limits can help create 
dynamic parking environment while maintaining healthy parking 
turnover and occupancy. The existing parking utilization has shown 
that on Pollasky Avenue, parking occupancy reaches as high as 87 
percent during peak periods, with parking being full at certain block 
faces. 

The City may consider installing Smart Meters and implement a 
demand-based pricing plan for on-street parking spaces along 
Pollasky Avenue (Figure 15), taking into the consideration of 
removing time limits, and pricing and policies that may encourage 
use of off-street parking lots where they are available. It may also 
help shift parking from overcrowded to less crowded areas or 
encourage other travel options such as walking and bicycling. The 
Demand-based Pricing should be considered for each block face 
that adjusts based on parking demand on that block face. The fees 
can be nominal as $0.50 per hour.

Table 5 provides a preliminary pricing plan for dynamic parking 
rates along Pollasky Avenue. 

168

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



25

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 14. Proposed Employee Parking Locations

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

VI
S 

AV
E

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
VE

EIGHTH ST

BULLARD AVE

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
SM

U
N

 A
VE

SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

VE

FIRST ST

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
PK

W
Y

R
U

SS
EL

L 
AV

E

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

RODEO DR

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

SECOND ST

C
O

LE
 A

VE

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EL
M

 A
VE

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

R
U

SS
EL

L 
AV

E

SECOND ST

Employee Zone Locations
Figure 14

Legend

Proposed Employee Parking 

169

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



26

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 15. Proposed Smart Meter Locations

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

VI
S 

AV
E

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
VE

EIGHTH ST

BULLARD AVE

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
SM

U
N

 A
VE

SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

VE

FIRST ST

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
PK

W
Y

R
U

SS
EL

L 
AV

E

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

RODEO DR

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

THIRD ST

SECOND ST

C
O

LE
 A

VE

FOURTH ST

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EL
M

 A
VE

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

R
U

SS
EL

L 
AV

E

SECOND ST

Proposed Smart Meter Locations
Figure 13

Legend

Proposed Smart Meter Locations

170

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



27

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

4.2.1 PARKING PAYMENT BY SMARTPHONE
Parking payment by smartphone technology allows a driver to 
pay a parking fee via smartphone or app. Old Town visitors can 
receive a reminder text when their time is almost up, and can add 
time without returning to their vehicle or parking meter/kiosk. This 
program usually requires license plate registration and a linked 
credit card account. This technology is usually available in addition 
to physical payment options.

4.3 WAYFINDING SIGN BRANDING AND 
ADVERTISING

4.3.1 PARKING WAYFINDING SIGNS 
Well-designed parking wayfinding signs can better direct visitors 
around Old Town and provide a friendly environment that 
encourages more walking from and to the destinations. 

Currently, parking lot signs are installed at all public parking lots 
indicating "Public Parking". There are “Old Town Parking” directional 
signs at numerous locations within the study area, directing visitors 
to public parking lots. These signs, however, provide minimal 
information to the drivers. It is recommended that the City realign 
parking wayfinding signs so that they are more visible and larger in 
size to direct drivers to different public parking lots. Existing signs 
should be consolidated. It is recommended that new wayfinding 
signs be installed at the following locations to heighten drivers' 
awareness of public parking lots (Figure 16):

Means of collecting parking payment 

171

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



28

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

• Pollasky Avenue/Third Street intersection;

• Pollasky Avenue/Fourth Street intersection;

• Pollasky Avenue/Seventh Street intersection; and

• Woodworth Avenue/Fifth Street intersection.
It is recommended that the City improve visibility of the entrance 
signs for public parking lots. The City should also explore proper 
naming of lots so visitors could easily locate available free public 
parking. 

Dynamic wayfinding signs provide real-time parking occupancy 
information to drivers on finding available parking. This cuts down 
unnecessary circling while searching for parking and associated 
driver frustration, fuel costs and greenhouse gas emissions. 
Dynamic signs showing real-time parking availability and traffic 
information have been installed in major Old Towns. In recent 
years, numerous smart phone apps have been developed that show 
similar information either via phone apps or vehicle dash-boards. 
Due to the high capital and maintenance costs, it is recommended 
that the City further evaluate the benefits of installing such signs in 
Old Town. Parking occupancy information can be linked with and 
displayed on a dedicated website for Old Town parking. However, 
this requires the installation of equipment at each lot to count 
vehicles. 

172

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



29

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

Figure 16. Existing and Proposed Wayfinding Sign Locations

FIFTH ST

THIRD ST

C
LO

VI
S 

AV
E

PO
LL

AS
KY

 A
VE

FOURTH ST

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
TH

 A
VE

EIGHTH ST

BULLARD AVE

EL
M

 A
VE

BA
R

O
N

 A
VE

O
SM

U
N

 A
VE

SEVENTH ST

C
O

LE
 A

VE

FIRST ST

VE
TE

R
AN

S 
PK

W
Y

R
U

SS
EL

L 
AV

E

SECOND ST

OSMUN CIR

RODEO DR

M
U

SI
C

 A
VE

THIRD ST

SECOND ST

C
O

LE
 A

VE

FOURTH ST

D
E 

W
IT

T 
AV

E

EL
M

 A
VE

THIRD ST

FOURTH ST

R
U

SS
EL

L 
AV

E

SECOND ST

Proposed Wayfinding Signs
Figure 12

Legend

Proposed Wayfinding Sign

Existing Wayfinding Sign

173

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



30

CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

DOWNTOWN 
FREE PUBLIC 
PARKINGP

CITY HALL GARAGE

2ND & OAK LOT

1ST & CHESTNUT LOT P
FREE
PUBLIC
PARKING

Time 
limit
and
regulations

2ND & OAK
LOT

POld Town 
Free Public 
Parking

Water Tower Lot

Old Town Station Lot P
Old Town 
Public Parking

FREE

WATER 
TOWER
LOT

4 Hour Parking
Employee 

Permit Exempt

4.4.2 BRANDING 
In addition to signage improvements, there are other means of 
publicizing public parking lots in Old Town, described as follows.  

Business Organization of Old Town, Events, and Library. Information 
with respect to the locations of public parking lots, hours of 
operations, time limit restrictions can be integrated in formats of 
brochures, flyers for distribution at the farmers market, library, 
events, and surrounding neighborhoods. The City can collaborate 
with business owners to voluntarily participate in placing window 
stickers that provide information about public parking lots. 

City Website. The City website provides substantial information on 
Old Town matters. It is recommended that a dedicated page be 
developed to include parking information such as EPPP, Old Town 
parking maps, and parking time limits, with regular updates. 

Old Town Clovis Website. It is recommended that the City take 
advantage of the existing website oldtownclovis.org to promote Old 
Town public parking facilities.

174

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



5 IMPLEMENTATION 
PLAN

175

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



CITY OF CLOVIS  OLD TOWN PARKING STUDY

32

his chapter describes an implementation plan of the parking management strategies. The implementation plan is organized into 
immediate, mid-term, and long-term actions, with proposed timeline for implementing each action. The actions are listed in Table 6.

# Action Description Timeline1

Immediate Actions

1 Old Town Employment Survey Conduct business survey to identify allotment for employee parking 
permit. 0-1 year

2 Parking Website
Update City and Old Town website to:
•     Advertise Old Town parking facilities;
•     Update changes to parking policies and programs;

0-1 year

3 Enforcement Continue current level of enforcement. 0-1 year

Mid-term Actions
4 Employee Permit Parking Program 

and Employee Parking Zones
Furnish and install employee parking signs at locations called out in 
Figure 14. Continuous campaign to educate Old Town employers and 
employees to park within designated zones.

0-2 years

5 Parking Wayfinding Signs Upgrade wayfinding signs with new branding strategies. Install new signs 
as called out in Figure 16.

0-2 years

6 User Feedback Collection Conduct survey to receive feedback with regards to up-to-date parking 
policy, management, and, infrastructure.

1-3 years

Long-term Actions
7 Smart Meter Pilot Program • Conduct needs assessment for demand-based pricing, devices, and 

payment by phone technology.
• Explore vendors for smart meter and kiosks. 
• Implement smart meters, kiosks at the locations called out in Figure 

15.

3-5 years

8 Old Town Parking Study Update Update the Old Town Parking Study by conducting parking demand 
anlaysis and evaluating the effectiveness of parking management 
strategies as implemented.

3-5 years

9 Enforcement Based on the results of the Old Town Parking Study Update, the City 
should determine the need for adjusting level of parking enforcement.

3-5 years

1 Estimated timeline includes planning, Council resolution, and implementation.

T
Table 6. Implementation Action Plan

176

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: February 3, 2020 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Change of Council Meeting Schedule 

Staff: Luke Serpa 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve the cancellation of the regular Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, February 10, 2020. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
There is a need to change the schedule of meetings for the City Council in February. Staff 
is recommending that City Council cancel the meeting of February 10, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Staff is able to consolidate the agenda items to the first and third meetings in February 2020. 
Staff is recommending that City Council consider canceling the meeting of February 10, 
2020. Given adequate notice, staff will be able to amend the timing of actions coming 
forward so that operations will not be affected by the cancellation.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 

177

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pursuant to the Clovis Municipal Code, the City Council meets in regular session on the 
first, second, and third Monday of each month, except when those Mondays occur on a 
recognized City holiday.  The City Council needs to confirm any change to the schedule of 
meetings in order to properly notice the public of the City Council’s schedule of meetings. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

 
A revised schedule of meetings will be published in conformance with law. 

 
 
Prepared by: Jacquie Pronovost, Executive Assistant 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager _LS__  

178

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.


	Top
	1. ADM -  Minutes for Jan 21 200203
	ADM - Jan 21, 2020 Minutes

	2. ADM - Adopt Ord 20-01 200203
	ADM - Adopt Ord 20-01 Marker

	3. FIRE - County Agreement 200203
	Fire - Transition Agreement SR
	Fire - Transition Agreement 2013 - ATT 1
	Fire - Transition Agreement 2020 - ATT 2

	4. GSD - Property and Evidence Rev 200203
	GSD - Property and Evidence Super Tech Position Allocation SR
	GSD - Property and Evidence Supervisor Class ATT 1 RES
	GSD - Senior Property and Evidence Tech Class ATT 2 RES
	GSD - Property and Evidence Super Class ATT 3 RES

	5. GSD - Construction Manager Rev 200203
	GSD -Construction Manager Rev SR
	GSD - Construction Manager Rev ATT 1

	6. GSD - PDS Director Rev 200203
	GSD - Director of PDS Revision SR
	GSD - Director of PDS Class ATT 1 RES-

	7. PDS - Amend FMFCD Drainage Cost 200203
	PDS - FMFCD Fee Amendment SR
	PDS - FMFCD Fee Amendment ATT 1 Reso
	PDS - FMFCD Fee Amendment ATT 1AB
	PDS - FMFCD Fee Amendment ATT 2

	8. PDS - Yamabe and Horn Agreement 200203
	PDS - CSA Yamabe Horn SR
	PDS - CSA Yamabe Horn ATT 1
	PDS - CSA Yamabe Horn ATT 2

	9. ADM - OT Parking Study 200203
	ADM - Old Town Parking Study SR
	ADM - Old Town Parking Study Att 1

	10. ADM - Cancel Meeting 200203
	ADM - Change  of Council Mtg. Schedule

	Bottom

